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Addendum No. 3  
To the Invitation for Bid 

1. Addendum 3 will show any changes required in the IFB by text additions displayed in bold 
and underlined and text deletions displayed as strikethrough text (i.e., strike). A revised IFB 
will be issued. The following language has been revised in the IFB: 
 

a. On Page 9 of the IFB, the following items have been amended to read as follows:  
Contract Term 
The term of this Agreement will span approximately 12 months and is expected 
to begin as soon as June 29, 2020 but no later than July 13, 2020 July 20, 2020. 
CalRecycle reserves the right to amend the term of this Agreement as needs 
arise. 
 
Process Type 
Modified Invitation for Bids (IFB). 
 
Process Schedule 
This process will be conducted according to the following tentative schedule 
where all times are Pacific Time: 
 
Advertisement Date    May 20, 2020 
Required Pre-Bid Meeting at 10:00 a.m.  May 28, 2020 
Written Questions Due by 11:00 a.m. June 3, 2020 
Submittals Due by 2:00 p.m.  June 24, 2020 July 1, 2020 
Bid Opening at 2:00 p.m.   July 2, 2020   July 9, 2020 
 

b. On Page 19 of the IFB, the following items have been amended to read as 
follows: 
Deadline 
The Bid package must be received by CalRecycle, at the address listed in 
Section I, Overview by 2:00 p.m., on June 24, 2020. July 1, 2020. 
 

c. On Page 20 of the IFB, has been amended to read as follows: 
Each Prime Contractor shall: 
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1. Be a State of California Licensed Timber Operator (LTO). Any hazard tree 
cutting sub-contractors shall also be LTOs capable of directionally falling timber 
away from structures, power lines, and roadways in urban and semi-urban 
settings.  
2. Have a Workers Compensation Insurance Experience Modification Rate 
(EMR) of 1.00 or less;  
3. Have completed at least two projects in the last five years removing dead or 
dying trees, fire trees, or hazard trees for a public agency within public rights of 
way of $2 million or greater. One of the two projects may include hazard tree 
removal work for California utility companies, so long as the project 
amounted to $2 million or greater.” 
 

d. On Page 21 of the IFB under Qualifications and Resources, item b, paragraph 2 has 
been amended to read as follows: 

Each of these two references shall support experience for the types of work identified in 
Section V, “Work to be Performed,” having completed at least two projects in the last 
five years removing dead or dying trees, fire trees, or hazard trees for a public 
agency within public rights of way of $2 million or greater. One of the two projects 
may include hazard tree removal work for California utility companies, so long as 
the project amounted to $2 million or greater. completed within the last 5 years, and 
be of a minimum contract amount of $2,000,000 each.” 

 
e. On Page 24 of the IFB, the following item has been  amended to read as follows:  

Bonding Information 
The Contractor’s actual submitted Cost Bid Schedule Total amount will be used 
for bid bond purposes. Contractors electing to submit both Cost Bid Schedules 
shall use the higher Total amount for bid bond purposes. Attach a notarized 
statement from the bonding company or companies your organization proposes 
to use, stating that the surety shall unconditionally guarantee the Contractor’s 
performance in all respects of the terms, conditions and provisions of this IFB 
and the resulting Agreement to the extent of a minimum of twenty-five fifty 
percent (25%) (50%) of the total Agreement amount. The notarized statement 
shall guarantee that the surety will execute the Faithful Performance Bond and 
Payment Bond requirement as stated in each applicable Work Order on or before 
the Work Order is signed and returned to CalRecycle’s Contract Manager. based 
on the above requirements. This bond must guarantee Contractor’s compliance 
with the terms of the Agreement and Work Order. This statement must be 
properly notarized and submitted as part of the Qualifications to meet submittal 
requirements of this IFB.” 
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f. On Page 32 of the IFB, the following items, both Item 1 – Mobilization / 
Demobilization to Operation Area and Item 2- Non-Working Days has been 
amended to read as follows: 
No mobilization/demobilization costs will be paid for log storage and processing 
facilities staff and equipment, ancillary personnel, crews, fuel trucks/drivers, 
mechanics, management, or support staff. This bid item is intended to be a one-
time fee per hazard Tree Removal Crew for the duration of the project. 
Mobilization and demobilization for days of no work are described in Item 5 2- 
Non-Working Days.  
 
This is a Community cost. 
Item 2- Non-Working Days: These bid items include the costs of mobilizing and 
demobilizing personnel, during IMT authorized days of no work due to inclement 
weather days, safety stand downs, and days designated as non-working days by 
the IMT. Sundays, every fifth Saturday, and Holidays do not count as part of this 
bid item and are not specifically compensated. This will include unanticipated 
safety stand down days as directed and authorized by the IC.” 
 

g. On page 49 and 92 of the IFB, the table referencing IMT Pre-Approved Biomass 
Facilities has been amended to add the following Biomass facility to the pre-
approved list, based on established criteria: 

Name  Type of 
Operation  

Address  Potential Daily 
Capacity  

Point of contact  

Rio Bravo 
Rockin  

IHI BioRAM 
plant  

3100 Thunder 
Valley Court  
Lincoln, CA 
95648 

600 Green 
tons/day, 25-
30 truckloads 

Scott Pederson 
916.645.3383 
spedersen@rbrocklin.co
m 

 
 

2. CalRecycle is releasing two documents in support of this Addendum. These documents 
are available in this link (https://www2.calrecycle.ca.gov/Contracts/Advertisement/1803) 
under a “Miscellaneous” links with the file names “DIR Determination Letter” & “CAL 
FIRE License & Insurance Requirements”. These documents are being provided for 
reference purposes only. 

 
3. Attachment 1 contains the Questions and Answers from the Mandatory Pre-Bid 

Conference held Thursday, May 28, 2020. 
 

4. Attachment 2 contains CalRecycle’s list of registered attendees from the required Pre-
Bid Meeting held on Thursday, May 28, 2020 at 10:00 a.m. PST via teleconference.  
 

5. Attachment 3 contains CalRecycle’s list of interested parties subscribed to IFB 
DRR19067 contract 

 
6. The following questions below were received during the Questions and Answers period. 

mailto:spedersen@rbrocklin.com
mailto:spedersen@rbrocklin.com


California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery 
Question and Answer - DRR19067 

 
 

4 
 

Q1 On page 9 of the IFB Contract Term it states that … Expected to begin as soon as June 
29, 2020 but no later than July 13, 2020. Since the bid is being opened on July 2, 2020 
what are the correct dates for the contract term? 

 
A1 Refer to the revised process schedule above. 

 
Q2 Can Mulch be hauled to landfills to be used as Alternative Daily Cover (ADC) and be 

counted as part of the 75% recycled material as it has in past practices in the State of 
California? 

 
A2 Section V Description of work, Work to be performed, item 19 states that at least 75% of 

materials be taken to an approved biomass-to-energy facility. Alternative Daily Cover 
(ADC) is not an allowable end use. Material used as a mulch or soil amendment would 
be could be included in the other 25% of end uses if delivered to an approved end use 
facility.  

 
Q3 Will tipping fees at final disposal locations be a pass through like they are on most 

federal contracts? 
 

A3 No. The Bid Schedule items include “[a]ny other items that could be reasonably 
anticipated to complete the described work”. See page 27 of the IFB  

 
Q4 If the final disposal / end users cannot accept the amount of mulch generated in a 

reasonable amount of time, will the 75% requirement be adjustable as not to delay 
production?  Will delays due to volume acceptance at end users be paid out as delays 
accordingly? 

 
A4 Both Contractors will be responsible for making sure that at least 75% of all wood 

materials (by green ton) originating from their operating area, emanating from this 
Hazard Tree Removal Program, are taken to any one or combination of the Pre-
Approved Biomass facilities listed on page 49 if the IFB.  
 
Loss of productivity due to foreseeable conditions within the Contractor’s control 
including, but not limited to, inclement weather, poor planning, Contractor error, labor 
shortages, safety violations, traffic, or Temporary Log Storage and Processing 
Sites/Staging Areas or end use facility wait times, are ineligible for payment as a 
“delay.” A Contractor’s failure to perform work in accordance with the approved 
schedule – determined in part by Work Orders and the twice weekly issued Incident 
Action Plans (IAPs) that contribute to the project as a whole – sustains damage. It is 
impracticable and extremely difficult to ascertain and determine the actual damage 
caused by the Contractor’s delay, so it is agreed that the Contractor will pay to 
CalRecycle the sum of $10,000 for each day on which the Contractor fails to perform 
work in accordance with the approved schedule without the approval of CalRecycle 
staff. 

 
Q5 Will it be mandatory that a prime uses all listed contractors on the initial bid? 
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A5  If referring to the proposed sub-contractors included in the prime contractor’s bid 

documents, yes, unless it is pre-approved by the Contract Manager. If referring to 
the lists of end use facilities, included in the IFB, then the answer is no, the Prime 
contractor can use as many or as few end use facilities that it determines 
appropriate for the purposes of developing the bid documents and meeting the 
completion schedule.   

 
Q6 Is there a weight restriction and or a rubber tire VS tracked machine restriction on any 

and all equipment to be used for tree removal? 
 
A6 Section V Description of work, Work to be performed, item 27 states that damage to the 

road and shoulder repair expenses will be the responsibility of the contractor. Item 6 
refers to specific issues on each property to consider. With those items in mind the 
contractor is permitted to determine the appropriate equipment needed for tree removal. 
Any equipment or vehicles used by the contractor or sub-contractors must meet all 
standard state requirements to be road legal.  Potential bidders should also note that 
the Environmental Compliance Plan for this operation restricts certain types of 
equipment in certain areas of the project.  See page 372 and other relevant references 
of the Environmental Protection Plan and Environmental Compliance Plan document, 
labeled “Miscellaneous 3” on CalRecycle’s website.   

 
Q7 The bid is asking for pricing on three separate quantities of trees, this clearly opens the 

bid up to being weighted / unbalanced.  Will any and all unbalanced bids be thrown out 
as they would in a regular Cal Trans bid? If not how is this cost effective per FEMA 
guidelines. 

 

A7 Potential bidders are advised of IFB’s Section IV “Evaluation and Selection” which 
addresses the question. Additionally, questions regarding FEMA reimbursement, 
particularly in regards to cost effectiveness, are outside of the scope of this solicitation’s 
documents.  

 
Q8 What is the dividing line between road damage and normal wear and tear for large 

trucking/logging operations?  How will damage to roads that are used by both contracts 
be separated and how will penalties be assessed to the contractors appropriately? 

 
A8 Page 51 of the IFB states that “Damage to private or public property for which the 

Contractor or a subcontractor is responsible” must be repaired.  Normal wear and tear 
on the public road system resulting from lawful use would not constitute damage for 
which the contractor is responsible.  However, damage resulting from extraordinary use 
or damage which could have reasonably been prevented is the contractor’s 
responsibility to repair. Final Damage determinations will be made by CalRecycle 
Contract Manager.  
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Q9 Will a contractor that breaks a septic system or utility that has not been properly marked 
by the consultant be held responsible? 

 
A9 Yes. It is ultimately the Contractor’s responsibility to verify and locate infrastructure that 

could be damaged by their own equipment, including septic tanks. The Consultant will 
gather information from the homeowner both in the ROE and by direct communication.  

 
Damage to private or public property for which the Contractor or a subcontractor is 
responsible, as part of the Operation, will be repaired by the Contractor at no cost to the 
State. Responsibility of the Contractor to repair incidental damage, referred to in the 
private property ROE, shall be considered and determined by the IC and the 
CalRecycle CM. Damages to such items as roads, trails, and other improvements 
(including but not limited to gates, fences or signs, etc.) damaged by the Contractor will 
be repaired to a like or better condition as that found prior to the start of work. Repairs 
may include repairing or replacing drainage control features. Significant damage to 
existing roads, trails or other improvements, determined to be caused by Contractor, 
must be repaired by Contractor at Contractor’s expense within ten (10) working days of 
notification by the IMT. 

 
Q10 Will contractors be responsible for damages to leach fields? 
 
A10 See A9 above. 
 
Q11 Does the state plan on having consistency within the IMT and IC? In the past they were 

changed regularly and were able to penalize the contractors due to different 
interpretations of the IFB.   

 
A11 Staffing decisions regarding the IMT are at the discretion of CalOES. Potential bidders 

are advised that this contract solicitation is intended to create a contractual obligation 
between Contractor(s) and CalRecycle. As such, CalRecycle’s Contract Manager will be 
the official representative for the State. Potential bidders are advised that CalRecycle’s 
Contract Manager may consult with other State Personnel during the course of this 
Agreement, consistent with other complex construction projects.    

 
Q12 Are trees that are under the 6” diameter qualify for the $10,000.00 penalty? If not, what 

is the minimum DBH that will be considered? 
 
A12 The Penalty applies to all unmarked trees regardless of sizes. If the Contractor believes 

there are unmarked trees that must be removed in order for marked trees to be safely 
felled and/or removed, the Branch RPF and the OC or designee must pre-approve its 
removal.  

 
Q13 Is the $10,000.00 penalty for gross negligence and accidental damages to trees or 

both?   
 
A13 Contractors who remove trees that have not been previously identified, documented, 

and marked by CalRecycle’s Assessment and Monitoring Consultant or by the Town or 
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County Assessment Consultants in their respective rights-of-way will forfeit $10,000 per 
tree. The Contractor is further responsible for any and all applicable fines which may 
apply to unauthorized removal of a tree.  Also see A12 above, 

 
Q14 Will environmental and planning delays due to the standards we are held to be paid out 

as delays per the contract? 
 
A14 Item 3 includes all Hazard Tree Removal Crews and their specific Tree Removal Crew 

equipment time for delays due to factors beyond the Contractor’s control related to 
inclement weather, unusual and unsafe materials discovered on the site, or other 
unforeseen or unexpected environmental issues (discovery of cultural resource, 
discovery of proximity to unknown endangered species habitat, etc.) or imminent safety 
issues. These delays will be designated and approved by the CalRecycle Contract 
Manager. However, delays which the contractor could have reasonably foreseen based 
on the Environmental Protection Plan and Environmental Compliance Plan (labeled 
“Miscellaneous 2 on CalRecycle’s website) will not be compensated.   

 
Q15 If the contract is awarded as a low bid contract and the contractor is not preforming to 

standards or driving costs higher due to a unbalanced bid, is the state going to fully 
terminate the initial contract before an additional contractor is brought in or will the 
contract be split? 

 
A15 Remedies to a Contractor’s non-performance will be explored by CalRecycle’s Contract 

Manager if such a discussion is necessary. Contractors will be responsible for the Scope of 
Work in their respective geographic areas, as agreed-upon in the awarded agreement’s bid 
sheet.  

 
Q16 In the IFB delays are due to items out of the contractor’s control, weather is also 

mentioned that it is not included in delays or non-working days. Is this a typo? How 
does the state figure that the weather is within the contractor’s control? If weather days 
are not included as delays how many days per month should be planned on as non-
included days? 

 
A16 Page 24 of the IFB states that inclement weather should be considered in the 

Contractor’s bid sheet.  Losses of productivity due to inclement weather will not be 
compensated as delays or nonworking days.  Potential bidders are encouraged to 
conduct sufficient research into local weather patterns and safety standards related to 
inclement weather to inform their bids. The IFB language has been revised to address 
this, and is referenced in the beginning of this addendum in 1f as well. 

 
Q17 In the IFB the temporary storage and reduction sites are listed for each contract, is there 

flexibility in which contract they are used under? 
 
A17 The Temporary Log storage and processing sites for each contract are stated in Section 

V of the IFB. There is no flexibility regarding which contract areas can use which listed 
sites.  
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Q18 Once the timber is harvested from ROW or ROE areas is it deemed to be owned by the 
contractor?  Will any proceeds from timber sales remain the contractors or must be 
given back to the landowner such as metals would be in a fire recovery mission? 

 
A18 Yes. The Contractor will sign the Timber Harvest Conversion Exemptions as the 

Licensed Timber Operator for the trees removed as part of this State program. Once 
trees are felled, the Contractor will be the owner of the trees. Proceeds for the sale of 
materials are retained by the contractor and should offset their unit price bid. 

 
Q19 Is a ROW tree deemed to be a tree with the entire root ball within the ROW, or does it 

include any tree that can fall into the ROW? 
 
A19 The determination of whether a tree is a ROW or a ROE tree will be based on where the 

trees are located in relation to Private Property lines and Public Right of Way. The 
Assessment and Monitoring consultant shall make this determination. Where a tree can 
fall has not been factored into this determination, though trees cannot be felled into 
properties that are not a part of this program. 

 
Q20 Will bridges be seen as change order items or do they need to be figured into the tree 

removal pricing? 
 
A20 Unit cost per each pre-marked hazard tree shall include all costs required to access the 

property (ies) for any temporary crossings of twenty (20) feet in length or less, as 
determined by the CalRecycle Contract Manager and the IMT. Examples of costs 
included in the unit price include, but are not limited to, materials, labor, mobilization, 
demobilization, and equipment costs. Material costs are considered part of the materials 
required for site and tree access as described in the IFB relating to Bid Items 4a, 4b, 
and 4c.  Materials may also include trench plates, beams, culverts, riprap, rock, 
geofabrics, safety fencing, erosion control measures, and any other materials used to 
construct or de-construct temporary crossings.  The Contractor shall also be 
responsible for all permitting fees and penalties.   

 
CalRecycle will consider change orders for temporary crossings in excess of twenty (20) 
feet, as determined by the CalRecycle Contract Manager and the IMT.  
 
If the Contractor is directed to perform work outside the Scope of Work of this 
Agreement, or encounters any other situation where it believes an adjustment of costs 
from the Bid Schedule is justified, the Contractor must immediately notify the Contract 
Manager of the need for a Change Order. Failure to promptly notify the Contract 
Manager constitutes a waiver of any claim for additional compensation prior to actual 
notification to the Contract Manager. Potential bidders are advised that Change Orders 
may take time (weeks or months) for full execution. Under no circumstances will 
CalRecycle compensate Contractors for the delay related to the execution of Change 
Order.  
 
Potential bidders are advised that any delay costs related to compliance to 
Environmental Protection Plan and Environmental Compliance Plan referenced as 
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“Miscellaneous 2, EPP & ECP” on CalRecycle’s website, will not be eligible for 
compensation, regardless of the temporary bridge’s size. 
 

Q21 Cable Bridge Rd, is the private road across the bridge in the program? Do these trees 
need to be included in the pricing as regular tees? Is Butte Creek Islands private road in 
the program? 

 
A21 Both referenced roads are presently included in the program. See A20 above for 

information on temporary bridges.  
 
Q22 Will each APN have to be signed off on and walked before crews move on to the next 

APN? 
 
A22 Sign off of individual APNs and sections of Right of Way are needed for crews to 

continue to the next location for work. For split crews with separate cutting and cleanup 
operations, following the 48-hour cleanup requirement, the final sign-off inspection shall 
apply by the end of that 48-hour period. This sign-off inspection shall determine if the 
trees were removed, all appropriate items removed, erosion control applied and if there 
is any apparent damage to property. The appropriate amount of time shall be allotted for 
these reviews and will not be considered as a delay of work. 

 
Q23 How will already downed trees be treated? If they must be moved how ill the contractor 

be compensated?  If they must be hauled how will the contractor be paid? Have existing 
log decks/piles been documented? 

 
A23 Existing logs and log piles on ROE properties and ROW sections will not be 

compensated under this contract. Those logs and piles should be designated and 
marked prior to commencing work so that the contractor crews are not asked to remove 
them. 

 
Q24 Private properties that are still publicly accessed such as the former golf course in 

Magalia, will they be determined ROW or require ROE to remove trees. How will the 
former golf course be deemed, ROW or ROE? 

 
A24 All private properties must submit a ROE to be eligible for inclusion in the State Hazard 

Tree Removal Program. 
 
Q25 Will previously installed BMP’s from the debris removal operation have to be replaced if 

damaged? Will the hydro mulch have to be replaced? 
 
A25 Section V Description of work, Work to be performed, item 6 states, “determine if there 

are any specific issues (access, existing infrastructure, utilities, waterways, species or 
cultural resources, etc.) to be considered.” Existing installed BMP’s/waddles shall be 
considered as a specific issue. The contractor should avoid damaging existing waddles. 
Damaged waddles must be replaced.  Hydro mulch will not have to be replaced. 
However, potential bidders should refer to Section V Description of work, Work to be 
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performed, items 24, 25 & 26 for additional information on required erosion control 
measures. 

 
Q26 Will trees with the root ball on private property but overhang the public ROW have to be 

cut at the property line as they would with FEMA guidance? How will they be paid out? 
 
A26 The State Assessment and Monitoring consultant contractor shall determine the 

designation of ROW or ROE trees. Contractors shall be paid per bid item 4a, 4b and 4c.  
There will be no partial removal of trees in this program. 

 
Q27 Will preloading debris, Log and or chip/mulch trucks be acceptable? 
 
A27 Pre-Loading log trucks and chipped wood trucks, etc., will be acceptable. The CM and 

IMT may authorize extending the hours of dispatch for trucks entering and exiting sites 
and yards if requested by the contractor. Understanding that truck weights entering and 
exiting yards are needed for the dispatch as stated in Section V Description of work, 
Work to be performed, item 18. Contractors should follow the Butte County noise control 
ordinance for work outside of normal work hours of 7a.m. to 7 p.m. 

 
Q28 Will hauling from the temporary debris management sites to the final destination be able 

to occur 24 hours a day? 
 
A28 As stated in a previous question, Section V Description of work, Work to be performed, 

item 18 states, “truck weights entering the yard loaded from the tree felling operation 
and leaving the yard loaded heading for the end use facilities.” The CM and IMT may 
authorize extending the hours of dispatch operations if requested by the contractor and 
allowed by the end use facilities and the communities through which they will be 
traveling. 

 
Q29 Will the state be providing armed guard security for areas in the county that armed 

guards were necessary during the debris cleanup? 
 
A29 Site locations and persons who may be deemed a security issues should be shared with 

the IMT as soon as possible. Security measures are being considered for this operation 
similar to the debris operations. Costs for crew security will be handled by the State. 
The security of Contractor storage and laydown yards will be the responsibility of the 
Contractors.   

 
Q30 Does tree removal work on a previous fire contract count for the tree removal 

experience needed? 
 
A30 No, unless the trees were marked by an arborist, and felled and removed by LTOs and 

taken to end use facilities. The prospective Contractor must have the experience, 
qualifications, and resources to perform the required tasks of the project. Refer to 
Section III, “Qualifications and Resources” for more information on the required 
information for bid submittal.  
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Q31 When the exemption is filed with CalFire, either utility or post Camp Fire, will the LTO 
Prime Contractor be listed as the timber owner? 

 
A31 Unless otherwise requested by CAL FIRE, the LTO selling the timber will be listed as 

the timber owner. Decisions on subcontractor assignments are the responsibility of the 
Prime Contractor (within the bounds detailed in this contract) but cannot result in delays 
to the operation. 

 
Q32 You stated that we have a requirement that seventy five percent of the material, both 

logs and slash, will need to go to CoGen Plants. This of course eliminates the utilization 
of this material to be used as lumber. That said are we restricted to the cogen plants 
that are listed in the IFB or can we send this material to other CoGen Plants? 

 
A32 Only the end use facilities (biomass co-gen or otherwise) identified in the IFB may be 

used by the LTOs and the LTOs’ subcontractors.   
 
Q33 Can the Timber Owner sell their logs and or fiber to an end user other than the ones 

listed in the IFB? 
 
A33 See A32 above. 
 
Q34 Can we grind and/or chip slash on site to meet the erosion requirements? 
 
A34 Section V Description of work, Work to be performed, item 25 states, “The Contractor 

will place two (2) to three (3) inches of chipped slash on all areas where the soil has 
been disturbed.” These erosion control materials can be chipped on site. 

 
Q35 The IFB states that the deadline for ROE submittal was May 7th. Does Cal Recycle 

anticipate re opening the opportunity for land owners to submit ROEs in the future or will 
this IFB and the anticipated totals be limited to those that were received by the 
deadline? 

 
A35 Property owners are still able to submit ROEs.   
 
Q36 Has PG&E removed all of the trees they were responsible for removing? 
 
A36 No. PG&E has multiple current and upcoming projects, including tree removal, which 

they have shared with the incident management team – geographic locations, project 
type, start and end dates, etc., of their current and upcoming projects in order to work 
collaboratively with the State Tree Removal Program and as safely as possible on the 
rebuild and recovery efforts. 

 
Q37 If an awarded Contractor is not performing per the Agreement, may CalRecycle 

transition the area to the other Contractor who was awarded the separate work area? 
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A37 An awarded Contractor would be responsible for the awarded Contractor’s respective 
geographic area. Remedies for non-performing contractors will be explored by 
CalRecycle’s Contract Manager if such an occurrence requires.  

 
Q38 On page 3, under the Cash Flow subheading, CalRecycle states that the creation, 

organization, and backup for invoices for the Agreement will be complex…Can you 
produce a sample, correctly submitted, invoice? 

 
A38 CalRecycle will work diligently with the contractors to ensure invoices submitted for 

payment are complete and undisputed. Exhibit B, section C, contains specific invoice 
requirements.  

 
Q39 Will CalRecycle’s Monitoring Firm be supplying data for the Contractor to bill off of? 
 
A39 Yes, CalRecycle expects all of the contractors to collaborate and exchange information 

to submit invoices for payment. The Assessment and Monitoring Consultant is expected 
to issue closed tickets for all work completed by each Contractor on a daily basis in 
support of their invoices. 

 
Q40 The California D-49 Tree Service Contractor license allows for the pruning, removal of 

limbs, stumps, and trees; however, CalRecycle is restricting this work to those Prime 
Contractors and Subcontractors who have a LTO license.  Would you consider allowing 
for D-49 license holders to be subcontractors to a LTO licensed Prime Contactor?  If 
not, what would be the reasoning? 

 
A40 Contractors and their subcontractors are required to follow all applicable laws and 

regulations.  The Hazard Tree Removal Operation is subject to the Forest Practice Act 
and Rules and considered a “commercial timber operation.” All “commercial timber 
operations” must be conducted by a Licensed Timber Operator (LTO).  A California 
Contractors State License Board D-49 - Tree Service Contractor license is not required 
for the Hazard Tree Removal Operation. 

 
Q41 Can you explain precisely why the LTO license is a requirement for the Prime 

Contractor and the Subcontractors? 
 
A41 See A40 above. 
 
Q42 Pg. 20, Qualifications and Resources, article 3 states; that the Contractor must have 

completed at least two projects in the last five years removing dead or dying trees, fire 
trees, or hazard trees for a public agency within public rights of way of $2 million or 
greater. Does experience with public agencies outside of California qualify? 

 
A42 Experience with public agencies outside of California will qualify. However, potential 

bidders are advised that they must still meet the requirements in Attachment G, 
California Only Restriction.  
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Q43 Could you please clarify if the Performance and Payment Bond will need to be in the 
amount of 25% of the total Agreement amount, or if it will need to be 100% of the 
Agreement amount? 

 
A43 Potential bidders are advised that the IFB’s p. 24 has been revised to read:  

The Contractor’s actual submitted Cost Bid Schedule Total amount will be used for bid 
bond purposes. Contractors electing to submit both Cost Bid Schedules shall use the 
higher Total amount for bid bond purposes. Attach a notarized statement from the 
bonding company or companies your organization proposes to use, stating that the 
surety shall unconditionally guarantee the Contractor’s performance in all respects of 
the terms, conditions and provisions of this IFB and the resulting Agreement to the 
extent of a minimum of twenty-five fifty percent (25%) (50%) of the total Agreement 
amount. The notarized statement shall guarantee that the surety will execute the 
Faithful Performance Bond and Payment Bond requirement as stated in each applicable 
Work Order on or before the Work Order is signed and returned to CalRecycle’s 
Contract Manager. based on the above requirements. This bond must guarantee 
Contractor’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement and Work Order. This 
statement must be properly notarized and submitted as part of the Qualifications to 
meet submittal requirements of this IFB. Upon the request of any person or entity 
appearing to be a potential beneficiary of bonds covering payment of obligations arising 
under the Contract, the Contractor shall promptly furnish a copy of the bond(s) or permit 
a copy to be made.  
 

 
Q44 Can CalRecycle provide the average cost of a Land Lease Agreement for the 

Temporary Log Storage and Processing Site/Equipment Laydown Yard facilities that 
you have authorized for Contractor use? 

 
A44 The contractors are expected to negotiate the terms and conditions of land lease 

agreements with Temporary Log Storage and Processing Site/Equipment Laydown 
Yard facilities.  CalRecycle does not have a contractual relationship with Temporary Log 
Storage or Processing Site/Equipment Laydown Yard Facilities.  

 
Q45 We would like to formally request a notice of intent to award the Agreement resulting 

from this IFB be posted. 
 
A45 Referencing page 41 in the IFB, "If requested, the notice of intent to award will be 

posted on CalRecycle’s contract website at http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Contracts/ and 
at the headquarters address noted in Section I, Overview, one day prior to award of the 
contract." Therefore, CalRecycle will post its NOIA for both contracts as requested. 

 
Q46 Will all slash need to be chipped and left on the public or private property it was 

removed from? 
 
A46 No. Not all slash is anticipated to be chipped and left on site. Only the amount 

necessary for erosion control. Section V Description of work, Work to be performed, 
item 9, 24 & 25 states chipped slash shall be placed on areas of ground disturbance. 

http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Contracts/
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Contractors shall minimize ground disturbance. Materials unable to be picked up by 
mechanical methods will be chipped on site. These chips will cover the disturbed areas 
covering the disturbed ground in thicknesses no more than 2”-3”. 

 
Q47 Would CalRecycle consider work performed for PG&E, due to the exact or very similar 

scope of work?  If the answer is no, then please explain why this same or similar scope 
of work, from the same burn area, does not qualify? 

 
A47 One of the two $2,000,000 projects may include hazard tree work for utility companies. 

The IFB language has been revised to address this and is referenced in the beginning 
of this addendum in 1c and 1d as well. 

 
Q48 Pg. 23, Qualifications/Licenses, article 4 states, All trees to be felled within the PG&E 

prescribed distances from a PG&E power pole or power line, depending on the Voltage 
carried, can only be cut by PG&E certified tree fallers.  With this being one of the 
qualifications, then it would it not seem reasonable that Contractors who have 
experience performing this exact work should be able to use that experience as a 
means of qualification, even though PG&E is not a public entity? 

 
A48 Qualifications from prospective bids will be evaluated on the information provided in the 

bid documents. All see A47 above. 
 
Q49 Need to know if we have a parcel that has both the Right of Way and the ROE can we 

use the ROE portion of the property to remove the RofW trees and vice versa? or Do 
we have to stay within the RofW to remove the RofW trees and stay within the ROE 
boundaries to remove the ROE trees?  

 
A49 If a property with a state approved ROE is present adjacent to the ROW where it would 

provide for safety and operational efficiency, the contractor may utilize the private 
property for the removal of ROW trees, and vica versa. The contractor understands that 
they are responsible for damages caused by all tree felling regardless of their status 
prior to felling. 

 
Q50 If there are contiguous ROE parcels can we utilize both parcels to remove trees from 

the adjoining ROE parcels or are we confined to stay within the parcel we are removing 
the trees from?  

 
A50 Yes if both properties have state approved ROEs. See A49 above. 
 
Q51 Will Utility companies take down lines for us as needed and are they going to be 

charging us for that service? 
 
A51 See A36 above. CalRecycle does not anticipates PG&E lines will need to be taken 

down as part of this project. Therefore, LTOs that would remove trees in proximity to 
PG&E power lines will need to be PG&E certified tree fallers to remove such trees, per 
PG&E requirements (as stated in the IFB pages 23, item number 4); page 45, item 
number 10); and page 87, item number J. 
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Q52 Can we fall RofW trees into the road if we close the road? 
 
A52 Traffic shall be maintained during operations. Full closures of roadways are only 

permitted by the IMT. Trees may be felled into the roadways if needed, but damage to 
public and private properties are the contractor’s responsibility. See item number 8) on 
page 35 and items 27) and 28) on page 51.  

 
Q53 Are the recommended lay down yards and processing sites all permitted and we can 

just set up and operate if we are the winning bidder and have reached an agreement 
with the property owners? 

 
A53 No, the sites have only been pre-screened preliminarily by the incident management 

team for potential environmental concerns, municipal zoning restrictions, and interest in 
program involvement by the property owner or agent. The contractor will be preparing, 
applying, and paying for the required permits for the temporary storage (log deck) 
facilities.  

 
Q54 If the sites are fully permitted and ready to go are there conditions that we will need to 

follow and where can we get copies of those conditions? 
 
A54 See A53 above. The Contractor will need to follow the County or City of Oroville land 

user requirements as well as the operational and environmental permit and lease 
requirements established for this property. 

 
Q55 If they are not fully permitted whom do we contact to get the sites status and any 

requirements needed for us to commence using the sites? 
 
A55 The Contractor will need to contact the County Planning Department or City of Oroville 

Planning department, depending on the location of the property. The site(s) chosen by 
the winning bid contractor will undergo further evaluation for FEMA Environmental and 
Historic Preservation compliance prior to any ground disturbing activity by program 
contractors or work for the program will commence.  The IMT will assist in the 
coordination of FEMA Environmental and Preservation review. 

 
Q56 Will Cal OES or CalRecycle assist in the cost of getting approved permits if they require 

expensive studies and reports? 
 
A56 No. The Contractor is responsible for obtaining all required permits, including any 

environmental studies.  
 
Q57 The IFB states that when the logs and slash are delivered to the perspective processing 

yards that the material is thereafter the property of the contractor which will be 
responsible for disposal, processing and any timber tax requirements in the event that 
some of the material can be sold to end users.  
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A57 The Contractor is responsible for all costs of disposal and shall retain any revenue from 
end use sales. It is anticipated that only a small amount of the timber material may meet 
timber tax requirements, but under no circumstances will CalRecycle be responsible for 
payment of timber taxes. The contractor shall be responsible for any taxes owed, unless 
specified otherwise in the Contractor’s written agreement with the end use facility. 

 
Q58 The IFB lists some perspective end users however this is very limited as some of us 

have other end users and markets that we have developed over the years. Are we 
limited to just the listed end users or can we pursue our own markets for the logs and 
chips that we generate? 

 
A58 See A32 above. 
 
Q59 Since we are the financially responsible owners of this material, we would expect that 

we would have the right to dispose of, sell or utilities the material as we deem 
economically appropriate. The limited end users listed will have a monopoly on the 
material generated and thus be able to set the prices paid for the material? 

 
A59 See A32 above. 
 
Q60 Are End Use Facilities subject to the prevailing wage requirements of the contract for 

receiving and handling chip removed from the project areas? 
 
A60 Contractors are advised that prevailing wage applies to the Hazard Tree Removal 

Program. However, CalRecycle cannot make a final determination on whether End Use 
Facilities are subject to prevailing wage requirements because the Department of 
Industrial Relations is the lead state agency enforcing prevailing wage determinations 
and enforcement. A copy of DIR’s determination, as applicable to the Hazard Tree 
Removal Program, is provided as reference only for potential bidders.  Potential bidder’s 
are advised that “wood material processing” may be considered work activities included 
within the Laborer craft. 

 
Q61 Are Truck Drivers hauling biomass, chips or logs to End Use Facilities subject to the 

prevailing wage requirements of the contract? 
 
A61 See A60 above. 
 
Q62 Ownership of the material needs to change hands at the scale from the owner to the 

End Use Facility. Is this a problem? 
 
A62 No. Section V Description of work, Work to be performed, item 21 ownership changes to 

the End Use Facility when delivered. 
 
Q63 Who owns the biomass from the project area to the End Use Facility (the Contractor or 

Calrecycle)? 
 
A63 See A18 above. 
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Q64 What designation does Calrecycle want the End Use Facilities to mark and record 

incoming biomass, chip and logs as? 
 
A64 This question is unclear. CalRecycle’s Assessment and Monitoring Consultant will be 

recording each ton of material taken to these end use facilities and they will also be 
recording each type of material received at these facilities from the program. 

 
Q65 Is the End Use Facility annual reporting requirement designation to CalRecycle different 

for materials from this project? 
 
A65 The IFB does not require annual reporting for end use facilities. The Contractor will 

prepare and provide Daily, Monthly and Quarterly Summary Reports of the hazard tree 
removal operational activities and status. The End use facilities will follow their 
operational permit reporting requirements. There is no different requirement just 
because the materials are provided by a CalRecycle operation. 

 
Q66 A visit to the project area shows the current tree marking is inadequate to judge the true 

scope and scale of tree removal on the ground. When is the tree marking for removal 
going to be complete? 

 
A66 Butte County and the Town of Paradise have conducted a tree survey of designated 

trees within public Rights of Way. Trees on private properties will be surveyed by the 
Assessment and Monitoring Consultant, that will commence their services in and 
around the week of June 15th. The completion date for surveying all trees to be removed 
is unknown. To that end it is currently anticipated that ROW trees will be the first trees 
to be removed, until the ROE property hazard tree assessments are well underway. 

 
Q67 Please define when an individual Task or Work Order will be considered complete and 

will retention be released for that particular Work Order? 
 
A67 CalRecycle Contract Manager, has the authority to determine the quality and 

acceptability of the following: 
• Work to be performed 
• Rate and progress of the work 
• Fulfillment of the services provided by the Contractor 
• Compensation for services provided by the Contractor 

 
CalRecycle’s Contract Manager may consult with other state personnel, such as the IC 
and the IMT, during the course of formulating determinations.  

 
The withheld payment amount will be included in the final payment to the Contractor. 
The final withheld payment amount will only be released when all required work has 
been completed to the satisfaction of the CalRecycle Contract Manager. The Contractor 
agrees to comply with the requirements of Public Contract Code (PCC) section 10346. 
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Q68 Exhibit D.20 Liquidated Damages, states that "the Contractor will pay to CalRecycle the 
sum of $10,000 for each day on which the Contractor fails to perform work in 
accordance with the approved schedule…". Does this apply to individual Work 
Orders/Tasks or the project as a whole? For example, if the contractor fails to meet the 
schedule for 5 individual Work Orders will it be assessed damages in the amount of 
$50,000 per day?   

 
A68 A Contractor’s failure to perform work in accordance with the approved schedule – 

determined in part by Work Orders and the twice weekly issued Incident Action Plans 
(IAPs) that contribute to the project as a whole – sustains damage. It is impracticable 
and extremely difficult to ascertain and determine the actual damage caused by the 
Contractor’s delay, so the Contractor agrees to pay to CalRecycle the sum of $10,000 
for each day on which the Contractor fails to perform work in accordance with the 
approved schedule without the approval of CalRecycle staff.  

 
Q69 The level of erosion control and BMP's is not clearly defined outside of placing the 

chipped slash at tree removal sites. How much additional erosion control and BMP's 
(i.e. wattle, silt fence, slope protection fabric, inlet barriers, etc.) should the contractor 
anticipate? Please define and quantify? 

 
A69 Section V Description of work, Work to be performed, item 26 Forest Practice Rules 

must be followed for the purpose of limiting sediment and sawdust. Erosion control 
BMP’s will be needed for these areas. 

 
Q70 Page 35 section 7) of the IFB requires PM10 street sweepers to maintain the roadways 

within the operational areas. Given the vast area and road miles of this project, it is 
impossible to predict the quantity of street sweepers that may be required. How many 
street sweepers should the contractor anticipate per tree removal crew, or vice versa? 
Please further define and quantify the street sweeping requirements? 

 
A70 Contractors are responsible for determining the appropriate number of equipment for 

operations, considering the number of crews and locations where they are working. The 
IMT will specify if more are needed. 

 
Q71 Will masticating be acceptable in lieu of chipping for trees and shrubs less than 6 inch 

DBH? 
 
A71 See A12 above.  Any wood product left onsite must meet the requirements listed in 

Section V, page 50, Item 25. 
 
Q72 Since the disposal areas are defined by CalRecycle, thus becoming part of the project 

area, will trucks hauling processed material from the log processing yards to the end 
use facilities be required to pay prevailing wage rates? 

 
A72 See A60 above. 
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Q73 Will all smaller trees (less than 6-inch DBH) and brush be required to be removed for 
the work areas? Or only the Hazard Trees marked for removal? 

 
A73 See A12 above. 
 
Q74 The IFB requires the Contractor to designate their preferred processing and end use 

site. If both contractors awarded a contract designate the same site, how will his be 
handled? Assuming the processing and/or end use site cannot accommodate both 
Contractors. 

 
A74 CalRecycle encourages, but does not require, contractors to work with and obtain 

Letters of Commitment from multiple pre-approved end use facilities.   
 
Q75 If submitting both cost bid schedule, do we need to submit 2 separate proposals to 

include all attachments on the bidder’s checklist? 
 
A75 A single cost proposal envelope with two sealed bid envelopes inside including the 

individual bid sheets is what is required. 
 
Q76 If submitting as a JV, do both entities submit individual secretary of states if the JV is 

not a corporation? 
 
A76 All members of the Joint Venture should submit Secretary of State registrations, in 

addition to the Joint Venture’s registration with the Secretary of State.  
 
Q77 If submitting a proposal as a Joint Venture (JV), do both JV partners need to meet the 

minimum qualifications as outlined in the IFB? For Example, if a JV is formed consisting 
of Contractor A & B and Contractor A meets the minimum qualifications and Contractor 
B does not, will the Joint Venture be disqualified? 

 
A77 Potential bidders are advised that CalRecycle will make final award decisions based on 

the Joint Venture’s qualifications, as required in the IFB for any other potential bidder. 
For example, per Business and Professions Code section 7029.1(a), CalRecycle may 
not award the IFB work to a JV that has not secured a joint license that meets the IFB’s 
requirements. Further questions relating to Contractor License State Board issues 
should be directed to CSLB. Potential bidders are advised to read the IFB’s minimum 
qualifications for prime contractors, including the Attachment G (California Only 
Restriction). 

 
Q78 Will Contractors that have brokered past projects, did not self-perform the actual work, 

and/or relied only on subcontractors to perform the actual work still meet the 
qualifications? Additionally, will the Contractors that performed this work under the 
brokers meet the qualifications for this IFB? 

 
A78 Potential bidders should review the IFB’s descriptions on Contractor and Subcontractor 

eligibility, located on the IFB’s 20-23 
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Q79 How will CalRecycle ensure that all sorting yards and end users will negotiate Fair and 
Equal Agreements with all Contractors? We would like to request CalRecycle provide 
rates for the IFB and negotiate with the end users post bid to ensure an equal bidding 
platform. 

 
A79 CalRecycle anticipates and expects all potential processing facility owners end use 

facilities to enter into good faith negotiations with all prospective bidders for the Hazard 
Tree Removal Operation. CalRecycle will not enter into a contractual agreement with 
either facility type. 

 
Q80 Will all Hazard Trees removed from a location be required to go to a sorting yard prior to 

the end use facility? Or, if the end use facility will take whole logs and/or trees, can the 
Hazard Trees bypass the sorting and processing locations and be hauled directly to the 
end use facility? 

 
A80 Hazard trees may bypass the processing facilities but must still be weighed. The 

Contractor can opt to install a separate scale facility separate from the log storage and 
processing yards at which whole log trucks can be weighed. If this is the case, 
CalRecycle Assessment and Monitoring Consultant must be present there to record 
weights, as stated on the top paragraph on page 36 of the IFB. 

 
Q81 Will there be project specific protocols in regards to COVID‐19? Under what Agencies 

COVID‐19 guidelines will the contractor be required to follow (i.e. County, State, 
Federal, Etc.)? 

 
A81 The State and County guidelines will be followed regarding COVID-19. In the event of a 

conflict between State and County guidelines, the more restrictive COVID-19 protocol 
will apply, as determined by CalRecycle Contract Manager. Such a determination may 
include consultation with other State personnel, such as the IMT. Page 25 of the IFB 
also details the requirements for the contractor’s Health and Safety Plan, which must 
address safe operations in consideration of COVID-19 and which will be reviewed by 
CalRecycle. 

 
Q82 Will a D49 license be required? According to the CSLB, this project is mostly tree work 

and a D49 license should be required. 
 
A82 See A40 above. 
 
Q83 The IFB requires that each tree removal site be cleaned up and finalized within 2‐ 

working days of tree felling, please confirm that this will remain a requirement. What 
are the damages should a Contractor fail to cleanup a site within the 2‐working day 
time frame? 

 
A83 See A22 above. Additional locations for assignment will not be authorized if this 

requirement is not met. 
 
Q84 Will additional end use facilities other than those defined by CalRecycle be allowed for 
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material disposal? Can the contracted Contractor, or the Contractor's own facility, be 
considered an allowable end user? 

 
A84 See A58 above. 
 
Q85 Will the Contractor be bound to PG&E safety guidelines for any part of this project? 
 
A85 Yes, as prescribed in the IFB, pages 23, 45, and 87. 
 
Q86 Where is the Hazard Tree Crew size and components defined in the IFB? 
 
A86 Section VI Definition and Terms, pages 58 and 59, defines the term crew. 
 
Q87 Since the end use facilities are defined as part of the project, will the scale house 

operators and operators handling waste at the end use facilities be required to be 
paid prevailing wage? 

 
A87 See A60 above. 
 
Q88 Will the scale house operators at the processing and sorting yards be required to be 

paid prevailing wage? 
 
A88 See A60 above. 
 
Q89 Can a Contractor hold a contract on both the Management Contract and the Tree 

Removal contract, as either a sub or prime? 
 
A89 No. 
 
Q90 Water truck sizes and quantities are not clearly defined in the IFB, please further 

define water truck requirements and quantity how many will be required per crew or 
vice versa? 

 
A90 Water equipment (water tenders/buffalos) are not defined since they are considered 

incidental to the contractor’s work. Water shall be made available by the Contractor at 
pre-determined sites for dust control at all times during hazard tree removal activities. 
Contractors are advised to include the cost of compliance with the Environmental 
Protection Plan and Environmental Compliance Plan into their submitted bids.  

 
Q91 What traffic control specifications are the Contractor to follow (i.e. CalTrans, 

MUTCD, FDOT, etc.)? 
 
A91 See item number 8) on page 35.  
 
Q92 Will a designated fire pump truck be required with every tree removal crew? 
 
A92 See A90 above. 
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Q93 The IFB requires that each tree removal site be cleaned up and finalized within 2‐ 

working days of tree felling, please further define what is considered "cleaned up". 
 
A93 ROE lot or ROW section sign off inspections will be a written record of the tree work 

completed and summary of the site conditions. The tree locations and numbers will be 
verified to ensure that all materials were cleaned up. Special areas will be evaluated to 
determine if damage or changes were made from the pre work inspection. Creating a 
written record of what happened with pictures. Starting an incident report, if needed of 
issues encountered. The contractor will be asked to provide any information regarding 
the location. 

 
The term “cleaned up,” means that trees marked for removal Including their logs, limbs, 
and slash are removed from where they were felled. Additional brush disturbed by the 
tree removal is also removed, as necessary. Disturbed soil is smoothed out and the 
appropriate amount of properly sized wood chips are applied as erosion control over the 
disturbed areas. 

 
 
Q94 Is hand raking of chipped slash required or will machine spread be acceptable? 
 
A94 Machine spread is acceptable provided existing requirements are met. See item 9) on 

page 44 and items 24), 25), and 26) on page 50 for chipped slash requirements. 
 
Q95 lt does not appear that there is a self‐performance requirement for this project, why is 

there no self‐performance requirement? 
 
A95 CalRecycle expects the Contractors to meet the qualifications and resources as 

described on Section III of the IFB. CalRecycle considers a self-performance 
requirement to unnecessarily limit the pool of potential bidders.  

 
Q96 Will the contractor be able to submit bi‐weekly payment requests as has been done 

on past cleanup projects? 
 
A96 Exhibit B 1. B. specifies that “[i]temized invoices shall be submitted … not more 

frequently than monthly in arrears...” Notwithstanding, CalRecycle recognizes an 
Operation of this sizes imposes significant financial pressures on Prime Contractors.  As 
such, the Contract Manager may consider variances. 

 
Q97 Do subcontractors listed for tree removal work need to meet the past performance 

requirements? We would assume if the Prime Contractor is required to meet the past 
performance requirements that all subcontractors performing any tree removal work 
must meet the past performance requirements, is this assumption correct? 

 
A97 No, subcontractors are required to meet the requirements described in the IFB. Some of 

the subcontractor requirements are described in the IFB’s page 17-18.  
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Q98 Please clarify if all Subcontractors need to meet the California Based requirement. 
 
A98 Yes, all subcontractors should be prepared to meet Attachment G’s California Only 

Restriction requirements.  
 
Q99 Why is the Agency opening the pricing bid package several days after the bid due day 

of June 24? Can the submission of the pricing be moved to July 2, the day of the 
pricing bid package public opening? 

 
A99 Bids will be due June 24, and opening July 2 as stated in the process schedule. The 

time in-between is needed for administrative purposes.  
 
 
Q100 The IFB requires the Prime Contractors Experience Modification Rate (EMR) to be 1.00 

or less, does this requirement apply to Subcontractors as well? 
 
A100 Subcontractors should also possess an EMR of 1.00 or less. 
 
Q101 Will Subcontractors be required to submit their IIPP with the proposal, for review, along 

with the Prime Contractor? 
 
A101 Yes. 
 
Q102 Is the Contractors IIPP submitted with the proposals considered confidential and 

exempt from release as a public document? 
 
A102 No, documents submitted as part of the procurement process should be considered 

public and subject to the Public Records Act after the Bid Opening Date.  
 
Q103 Will PM‐10 Compliant Street Sweepers be required? The Camp Fire Debris Removal 

project also required PM‐10 Compliant Street Sweepers and several non‐compliant 
Street Sweepers were noted working on the project, please clarify Sweeper 
compliance requirements. 

 
A103 See Item number 7) on page 35 of the IFB. 
 
Q104 Can a bid item for SWPPP be added? It is impossible to quantify the extent of the 

SWPPP and/or erosion control that will be required. 
 
A104 Potential bidders should be advised that the cost of SWPPP – including the risks of 

erosion control – is borne by the contractor and should be incorporated into the bids. 
 

Q105 Can a Contractor be awarded one of the contracts as a Prime and also be listed as a 
Subcontractor on the other contract? 
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A105 No. Contractors and subcontractors may only participate in one of the three Hazard 
Tree Removal contracts (DRR19104, DRR19103, and DRR19067).  

 
Q106 If bidding as a Joint Venture, do all of the parties within the Joint venture need to 

 meet the EMR requirement of 1.00 or less? If the JV EMR is used it could allow a 
 defunct Contractor with a bad safety record to have a new EMR of 1.00 or less. 

 
A106 See A78 above. In addition, all members of the Joint Venture must meet the Prime 

Contractor requirements described in the IFB. Some examples of Prime Contractor 
requirements are listed in IFB’s p. 20-22. 

 
Q107 Please expand and define the traffic control requirements further. What is the 

allowable time and distance allocated for each traffic control zone? Is the Contractor 
limited to the length and duration of the traffic control zone? Is the Contractor 
allowed to completely close the traffic control zones or are we required to allow 
traffic to continue through the zones? If complete closures are not allowed, and 
traffic must be allowed through, at what time intervals is the Contractor required to 
allow traffic through each zone? 

 
A107 See A52 above for full closures. Any approved road/street closures shall be at limited to 

10 minutes unless otherwise directed by the IMT. Traffic will then be allowed to flow in 
both directions prior to stopping again. Closures will be in compliance with all state laws 
and local ordinances. 

 
Q108 Is the Agency planning on opening the pricing bid package prior to July 2nd and only 

announcing the results on July 2nd? If the Agency will not open the bid package until 
July 2nd, please consider allowing the Contractor to submit the bid package on July 
2nd instead of June 24th.  

 
A108 Bids will be due June 24, and opening July 2 as stated in the process schedule. The 

time in between is needed for administrative purposes.  
 
Q109 The Traffic Management Plan prepared by CalTrans and available concurrently with this 

IFB solicitation (see “Miscellaneous 3”): indicates several recommendations that should 
be taken prior to as well as subsequent to the completion of the Tree Removal Project. 
These include many improvements and strengthening of existing roads, the addition of 
auxiliary lanes, addition of access driveways at processing sites, inadequate existing 
pavement structural sections, and an addition of an improved central island and truck 
apron as well as continuous roadway monitoring. Please define and quantify what is 
required of the Contractor in regards to access and roadway improvements as part of 
this contract. 

 
A109 Contractor may be required to make improvements and install traffic control devices and 

crews to maintain traffic from the recommendations notes in the TMP from Caltrans. 
The exact requirements will be based off the proposed locations for use and conditions 
encountered during use. 
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Q110 Will the Tree Removal Contractor be required to make repairs to damaged roadways 
or damage to roadways that occur under this contract? If so, please further define and 
quantify the roadway repair requirements. 

 
A110 See A8 above. 
 
Q111 Page 35 Section 9) of the IFB requires the Contractor to obtain all local County use 

permits, including preparing appropriate CEQA and NEPA environmental documents. 
Please clearly define what the Contractors role will be in preparing CEQA and NEPA 
environmental documents. Environmental Impact Reports and such can take months 
to years to prepare, process and obtain permits? 

 
A111 An Environmental Impact Report is not required for this project.  Potential bidders 

should refer to the Environmental Protection Plan and Environmental Compliance Plan 
(listed as “Miscellaneous 2” on CalRecycle’s website for additional information on the 
environmental regulatory requirements in place for this project, including the role of the 
Prime Contractors.  

 
Q112 If submitting a proposal as a Joint Venture (JV), do both JV partners need to be an 

LTO? For Example, if a JV is formed consisting of Contractor A & B and Contractor A is 
an LTO and Contractor B is NOT an LTO, will the Joint Venture be disqualified? 

 
A112 See A77 above. All members of the Joint Venture must meet the Prime Contractor 

qualifications, including the LTO licensing requirements. 
 
Q113 In reference to Bonding information on page 24 of IFB, our understanding is that a new 

performance and payment bond is issued for each and every Work Order. Could you 
clarify if our understanding is correct? If so, can we consider the bond is released upon 
completion of the relevant Work Order? 

 
A113 See A43 for changes to the performance and payment bond.  
 
Q114 As for the requirements of Work Order in IFB, does CalRecycle consider to issue 

multiple Work Orders in a same timeframe? If so, how many Work Orders will likely be 
issued at the same time? 
 

A114 Work Orders will be issued as work commences, as determined by the Contract 
Manager.  

 
Q115 At each designated log storage and processing facility, is source power and water 

available? 
 
A115 No, some of the sites are empty lots conveniently located in or around the Camp Fire 

burn scar. Although some of the lots do not have power and water, some of those lots 
have already been used as log deck facilities. 

 
Q116 Item 3 ‐ Delays requires the Contractor to notify the IMT within fifteen (15) minutes 
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for a potential delay. Should a notice be provided by the Contractor in writing? Is a 
verbal communication considered as the notice? 

 
A116 Written communication via electronic mail is required, unless such communication is not 

possible due to insufficient cellular service.  In the event written notification is not 
possible, the Contractor shall provide verbal notice as soon as reasonably and safely 
practical, followed up with written electronic mail describing the nature and 
circumstances of both the incident causing the delay, as well as the delay in notification 
to CalRecycle’s Contract Manager.  

 
Q117 We presume that a tree to be cut must have a marking. Can the Contractor 

understand that cutting the marked tree is always billable no matter what size of tree 
diameter is? 

 
A117 Unit costs are per each pre-marked hazard tree and does not consider the diameter of 

the tree.  Undersized trees will neither be pre-marked nor billable. Marked trees shall be 
following the steps outlined in Section V, Description of work, on page 44, Items 6-8. 
The contractor must ensure all trees are confirmed to be eligible for removal by the 
Field Management Consultant’s Task Force Leader prior to felling, who must be onsite 
during all felling operation.  
However, if a marked tree is later found to be under 6 inches DBH but was erroneously 
marked, the tree will not be eligible for payment.  Similarly, trees marked by actors other 
than the Field Management Consultant (such as trees marked nefariously by property 
owners) will not be eligible for payment.  The contractor must ensure all trees are 
confirmed to be eligible for removal by the Field Management Consultant’s Task Force 
Leader prior to felling, who must be onsite during all felling operations.   

 
Q118 For the California Only Restriction please provide greater detail or clearer definition of 

the following underlined terms: 
 

(2) A business or corporation that has a major office or manufacturing facility located in 
California and that has been licensed by the state on a continuous basis to 
conduct business within the state and has continuously employed California 
residents for work within the state during the three years prior to submitting a bid 
or proposal for a state contract? 

 
What the minimum number of California employees continuously employed in order to 

be eligible? 
 
A118 Interested bidders must meet Attachment G’s self-certification requirements to be 

deemed eligible to bid on this IFB.  
 
Q119 Would a non-California company that is a parent, sister, subsidiary or similar to a 

California company be eligible for consideration for this bid under the California Only 
Restriction requirement in the IFB? 
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A119 No. Interested bidders must meet Attachment G’s self-certification requirements to be 
deemed eligible to bid on this IFB. 

 
Q120 Bonding: It is not commercially feasible to bond only 25% of a project. Please clarify this 

requirement or acknowledge that bond premiums are reimbursable based on 100% of 
the contract value. 

 
A120 See A43 for revisions in the performance and payment bonds.  
 
Q121 Bid Schedule Item 6 states “No Change Orders or cost adjustments will be considered 

for quantities variations – the unit costs listed are firm and binding regardless of actual 
quantities available.” However, this is contradictory to “Over Project Costs” which states, 
“There will be wide variations in quantities of trees removed from each property on this 
project. Considerations for unit costs adjustments to the Bid Schedule will use the 
overall project quantities, and not quantities from individual properties”. Will there be a 
quantity variation clause included as part of the contract or not? 

 
A121 There is no “quantity variation” clause associated with the contract. 
 
Q122 Please confirm that under Section V - charts on pages 46, 47 & 48, as well as 

paragraph 19, that the conversion of the hazard trees into a California approved biochar 
product (CA Gov. Off of Planning & Research Report; Jan. 2016) is an acceptable end 
use under paragraph 19. 

 
A122 Under Section V of the IFB, Charts on pages 46 & 47 refer to log storage and 

processing sites for the two contractors. Work to be performed item 19 and the two 
associated charts refer to the Pre-approved End Use Facilities, on page 49. As of this 
date wood processing into Biochar product is not approved as an end use for this 
operation. Biochar operations may be added as an acceptable end use by contract 
change order during the project. However, the bids being prepared and considered in 
response to this IFB will not take that slim possibility into consideration in the bid pricing. 

 
Q123 In the Pre-bid briefing, it was mentioned that the DR-19067 debris removal project was 

considered a response activity; however, the tree removal project falls under the 
Recovery activities of DR-19067. Could you please verify if the tree removal project is 
still covered under the Governor’s issued Executive Orders? 

 
A123 Interested bidders should review IFB’s page 4.  Both the structural debris removal and 

this hazard tree removal operation are considered recovery operations. 
  
Q124 Our facility has been designated as a Temporary Log Storage and Processing Facility. 

Is there a process of getting on the list of the Final Destination facility? 
 
A124 No. See A32 above. 
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Q125 With all the ongoing rebuilding activities and the private and public tree removal 
operations, how the State is going to ensure that truckers are complying with the 
approved traffic plan and obeying with the safe speed limits? 

 
A125 The Consultant contractor shall install GPS Commercial Fleet trackers on all haul 

trucks, sweepers and water trucks. All State operations vehicles, when they are being 
DOT inspected, will also be given a placard to place on the vehicle that will distinguish it 
as a vehicle that is part of the state program. These placards will be visible by IMT, CHP 
and local citizens that will provide any concerns about vehicle safety issues to the 
TROC and local police. 

 
Q126 Can Contractors use Subcontractor’s experience to meet the minimum qualification 

requirements for bidders? 
 
A126 No. Prime Contractors must meet the minimum qualification requirements described in 

the IFB’s page 20-22. 
 
Q127 Can prime contractor find and utilizes a different log storing, sorting, and processing 

facilities that is not on the approved list? If the proposed yard is in compliance with all 
requirements listed in this solicitation and have appropriate spacing, facilities, and 
permits necessary. 

 
A127 No. The only log storage and processing sites approved for those who are preparing a 

bid for this IFB are listed in the IFB. 
 
Q128 A tree with multiple stems that does not have at least one steam 6 inches or greater 

DBH qualify, if all stems combined equal greater than 6 inches in diameter? 
 
A128 No.  If a tree with multiple trunks (stems) does not have at least one stem >6-inch DBH 

then it will not be eligible for payment, if removed. If a tree with multiple stems has at 
least one stem => 6-inch DBH then the contractor will be paid for the largest diameter 
stem and it will be counted as one tree. One root ball equals one tree for reimbursement 
purposes.  

 
Q129 Will there be any flexibility of the 75% mandatory delivery of material to approved 

biomass facilities in the event that their capacity cannot facilitate the amount of volume 
produced? 

 
A129 No. CalRecycle has received letters of intent and commitment of quantities that they are 

willing to receive from the 3 listed biomass facilities. Combined there is more than 
enough capacity at these facilities to meet the State’s operational needs. See A59 
above. 

 
Q130 Will falling trees into the footprint of previous structures be allowed? 
 
A130 Tree Cutting contractors are expected to use the property ROE or public ROW for the 

falling of trees. Trees can be felled into the footprint of the previous, now removed, 
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structures. Any waddles placed must be protected and kept intact as stated in the IFB.  
Damaged waddles must be replaced.  

 
Q131 Will falling trees outside of the property be allowed? 
 
A131 See A49 above. 
 
Q132 What is the maximum stump height allowed in the event of obstacles that pose a safety 

concern for crew and or potential damage to equipment? 
 
A132 Section V Description of work, Work to be performed, item 11 on page 45, refers to 

stump heights. 
 
Q133 Will the contractors be responsible for fire damaged wood that is previously cut and 

stacked on the property? 
 
A133 See A23 above. 
 
Q134 Will cutting crews be restricted to operating on the same parcel as the clean-up crew?  
 
A134 No. Cutting crews and clean-up crews may operate on different parcels.  However, all 

tree materials much be removed within 2 working days after felling (see page 34 of the 
IFB).  See definition of Hazard Tree Removal Crew on pages 58 and 59 of the IFB. 

 
Q135 In the event the cutting crew is able to work on separate parcels, how far ahead can 

they work? 
 
A135 See A22 and A83 above. 
 
Q136 The maximum chip size of ½ to 3 inches in length and average thickness of 1/16 to 3/8 

inch in any direction will require multiple passes through chippers / grinders and or 
modifications of the standard equipment. Is it possible to alter this specification to meet 
standard size material produced by the average available equipment? 

 
A136 Chip size as noted above refers to Section V Description of work, Work to be 

performed, item 2 on page 34 of the IFB for placement of chips on disturbed soil on 
ROE and ROW.  This chip size specification will not be changed for the IFB. 

 
Q137 It appears in the contract that any equipment operations will require chips broadcasted 

where equipment was utilized, is this accurate? 
 
A137 See A34 above 
 
Q138 Can the list of signed up parcels be sorted by APN or Street for each designated area? 
 
A138 Yes, this can be sorted by APN and/or Street utilizing various software (e.g., Excel, 

Geospatial software, etc). 
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Q139 Throughout all designated areas there are trees that will require specialized equipment 

to remove. Will it be acceptable to postpone tree removal of these trees in order to 
schedule and accumulate enough trees to reduce cost and efficiency of the specialized 
equipment? 

 
A139 The IMT and OC may allow trees to be bypassed for reasons such as this. A specific 

detailed plan for the specialized equipment and locations must be submitted and 
approved by the IMT prior to its implementation. The Contractor must provide a timeline 
when the specialized equipment will be deployed in the submitted plan.  Specialized 
equipment must be deployed within a reasonable timeframe.  Manlifts, boom trucks and 
tree rigging equipment are not considered specialized equipment for trees to be 
bypassed. 

 
Q140 The prevailing wage list of positions will not cover all types of employees that will be 

required to perform the work within this project. Will there be clarification on required 
pay for these positions or is it the contractors’ responsibility to get answers from the 
DIR? 

 
A140 See A60.  
 
Q141 The solicitation states that the material from ROE and ROW have to be separated. At 

what point if any can the material produced within the ROE and ROW be combined? 
 
A141 All ROW trees will be felled, processed, and transported separately from the ROE trees 

felled, processed and removed from private properties. They will be reimbursed 
separately, by FEMA, so they need to be tracked separately from the property from 
which they came, to the log storage and processing yard and (if applicable) all the way 
to the end use facility. No slash, or chips, or logs from ROW trees can be mixed with 
slash, or chips, or logs from non-ROW felled trees. See page 44 of the IFB.  

 
Q142 Can loads be mixed from parcel to parcel or location to location in order to create a full 

load to be delivered to the processing yard? 
 

A142 Yes. However, ROW tree material and ROE tree material must be handled separately; 
see A141 above. However, the Assessment and Monitoring Consultant will still need to 
track each individual tree in these loads. The Contractor shall assist the Consultant with 
this. 

 
Q143 Does performing 2 projects in excess of $2,000,000 for a California based utility 

company meet the minimum experience? 
 
A143 See A47 above. 
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Q144 Does the prime contractor have to meet all experience qualifications listed within the 
solicitation or can sub-contractors be utilized to meet the minimum experience 
qualification?  

 
A144 Potential bidders are advised of the minimum requirements that Prime Contractors must 

meet, as described in page 20-22 of the IFB. 
 
Q145 IFB States "Provide a traffic control crew for each tree falling crew and any crew that 

might potentially block public or private roadways". Is the intent that every crew must 
have a traffic control during working hours, weather being implemented or not? 

 
A145 As referenced in this potential bidder’s question, the IFB makes clear that a traffic 

control crew must be provided for each tree falling crew and any crew that might 
potentially block public or private roadways. See IFB page 35.   

 
Q146 The IFB requires trucks to be weighed at the temporary log storage facility? If the trees 

are paid by the each, what is the intent of the weights and will it be used in a CHP 
compliance manner? 

 
A146 The FEMA Public Assistance Program requires the tracking of all hazard trees removed 

as part of this operation from origin to disposal. CalRecycle intends to meet this 
requirement in part by systematically tracking wood material weights.  Weights of trucks 
arriving at temporary log storage yards will be used for tracking of trees. Trucks 
departing temporary log storage yards will be dispatched by weighed and tracked to the 
end use facility. Trucks arriving at the End Use facility will be logged in by the same 
dispatch. Truck weights will follow the legal load limits as prescribed by CHP. 

 
Q147 Similar to previous incidents, will GPS be implemented onto hauling trucks by the 

consultant? And whose responsibility is to ensure these units are working? What 
amount of time should the contractor consider for the installation and maintenance of 
GPS if so? 

 
A147 See A125 above. Contractors shall coordinate and cooperate with the Assessment and 

Monitoring Consultant who will be responsible for installing GPS devices on all 
Contractor haul vehicles water trucks and sweepers. Contractors will work with 
Consultants to make sure that these devices are working properly and that the 
Contractor’s drivers are trained in their use. 

 
Q148 Will Cal Recycle assist in getting permits granted by communicating with local 

governing agencies, to facilitate mobilization with 48 hours of NTP? Potentially by the 
use of the Governor's Order of Emergency? 

 
A148 Permits are the responsibility of the Prime Contractors. Some of the initial trees felled 

and removed may be taken to end use facilities with minimal pre-processing, prior to 
establishing processing facilities. 
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Q149 Will the prime contractor be responsible for LTO Tax on every parcel, or can it be 
assigned to a subcontractor LTO? 

 
A149 Yes. Unless otherwise requested by CAL FIRE, the LTO selling the timber will be listed 

as the timber owner. Decisions on subcontractor assignments are the responsibility of 
the Prime Contractor (within the bounds detailed in this contract) but cannot result in 
delays to the operation.  At no time will CalRecycle be responsible for the payment of 
any taxes 

 
Q150 How is the contractor going to treat residual slash in heavy vegetated areas? The 

approved methods in the TROP may be more damaging to the environment than the lop 
and scatter method. 

 
A150 See A46 above. CalRecycle’s Contract Manager’s advance  approval will be required 

for any alternatives proposed by contractors. 
 
Q151 Will a blanket exemption be utilized to increase approval timeline? Exactly what is the 

expectation for the contractor in obtaining or being listed on each exemption? 
 
A151 See A111 above. The Prime Contractor LTO and Sub-Contractor LTOs will be signing 

the Public Utility Conversion Exemption Permits or their specific contracting area. These 
Exemption documents will be prepared by the Consultant RPFs and will include a listing 
of all the potential APNs that could be included in each Exemption area. CalFire has 
indicated it may take only a few days for their review and approval of each of these 
Exemption documents. 

 
Q152 Can the end use facility dictate the quality, processing means and methods, and foreign 

objects within tree's received? To the extent that it varies from the IFB and TROP as 
long as it is received in a state that meets their standards. 

 
A152 Yes, the end use facility can certainly dictate their quality and processing requirements 

for wood products received from the Contractor.  Contracts between the End Use 
Facilities and Contractors will determine standards for acceptance. Section V 
Description of work, Work to be performed, page 50, item 22, refers to metal detectors. 

 
Q153 If firms are in a Joint Venture agreement, does the Joint Venture itself need to have the 

Timber Operator License. Or will one of the firms already having their license suffice? 
 
A153 See A77 above, Section III Bid Submittal Requirements, Qualifications and Resources, 

item 1 states Prime contractor be a State of California Licensed Timber Operator (LTO). 
Any hazard tree cutting sub-contractors shall also be LTOs capable of directionally 
falling timber away from structures, power lines, and roadways in urban and semi-urban 
settings.  

 
Potential bidders are advised that the Joint Venture itself must also be registered as an 
LTO at the time of contract award or be deemed ineligible. Potential bidders are advised 
to consult with CalFIRE’s Licensed Timber Operator’s Office at 916-653-7211, or by e-
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mail calfire.ltoprogram@fire.ca.gov. In-person classes may be required to obtain LTO 
Type A certifications, which may be delayed because of CalFIRE’s class availability. 
Due to the emergency nature of Hazard Tree removal, under no circumstances will 
exceptions be made to delay the contract award to accommodate LTO certification 
requirements.  

 
Q154 Per page 10 of the IFB, item 3, Hazard Tree Removal - May we rely on this as the 

complete list of site guidelines for trees to be felled on private property?  
 
A154 The referenced page, item number, and question are unclear. All Contractors are 

expected to follow the terms and conditions in the Contract. 
 
Q155 Is the Timber Operator License requirement for subcontractors specific to one class of 

license? 
 
A155 See A40 above. 
 
Q156 In regards to the 25% limitation of material that a firewood/sawmill facility can receive, 

would it be possible for such a facility to received credit for all material that it grinds and 
takes to a Cogen plant?  This would allow said facility to receive more than 25% as it 
attempts to high-grade the material into firewood and lumber, then the lower grade 
material into grindings for the Cogen plants (not to exceed 25% of material received & 
processed into firewood/lumber).  

 
A156 The requirements of the IFB is that at least 75% of the wood materials harvested must 

be taken to biomass to energy facilities. The remaining, up to 25% can go to Wood 
Materials Utilization Facilities. Wood materials that are delivered to and paid for by 
Wood Materials Utilization Facilities can only count the materials they receive toward 
their designated end use type. Even if such a facility were to determine that only a 
portion of the wood materials brought there could actually be re-used for lumber of 
firewood or other use and that the remainder could only be chipped and brought to a 
biomass facility. Neither the contractor that delivered this material nor the end use 
facility can claim credit for this material being taken to a biomass facility.  

 
Q157 Under #3 page 20, does the 2 public ROW project experience of at least $2,000,000 

requirement for the total amount or does each individual project have to be at least 
$2,000,000? 

 
A157 Each individual project should consist of at least $2,000,000.  
 
Q158 The IFB clearly states the Prime Contractor / Bidder shall maintain both the CSLB 

License and the LTO and that a subcontractor cannot be used to fulfill this requirement. 
If the Prime Contractor / Bidder has both of these items, can a subcontractor’s 
experience help the Prime Contractor meet the “References” requirement as long as the 
subcontractor served as the prime contractor on that specific project? 

 
A158 See A126 above. 

mailto:calfire.ltoprogram@fire.ca.gov
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Q159 Considering the purchasing requirements of 2 CFR 200.319(b) and in the interest of fair 

and open competition would CalRecycle remove the “California Only Restriction” 
described on p. 23 and following of the IFB document? 

 
A159 Questions relating to FEMA reimbursement rules are beyond the scope of the IFB’s 

solicitation documents. As a result, the California Only Restriction will remain in place.  
 
Q160 Regarding the “CalRecycle Finance & Administration Consultant” described on p. 26 of 

the RFP document; what are the performance requirements for this Consultant to 
conduct QA and examination services for the Contractor’s invoices?  # of days to 
process? 

 
A160 The Contractor is required to provide itemized invoices with supporting documentation.  

Each complete invoice package submitted to CalRecycle must include specific 
information identified in Exhibit B. CalRecycle will not process incomplete invoice 
packages.  The duration of CalRecycle Finance & Administration Consultant’s review is, 
in part, based on the accuracy, clarity, and completeness of the Contractors’ respective 
invoice packages. The Contractor is encouraged to coordinate and communicate with 
the CalRecycle Finance & Administration Consultant as it relates to invoice quality 
assurance and examination. Further, the CalRecycle Finance Team is available to 
provide training to Contractors and Consultants regarding invoicing expectations.  See 
DRR19104 for  additional information relating to the CalRecycle Finance & 
Administration Consultant contract.   

 
Q161 Please confirm that the proper prevailing wage determination for all tree workers is NC-

102-X-21-2020-1 “Tree Maintenance (Laborer)” “Area 2”? 
 
A161 See A60 above. 
 
Q162 Will prevailing wage be required for trucking / hauling activities and if so, what prevailing 

wage determination should be used?  i.e. “2K-2L - Driver” versus “55 - Teamster”? 
 
A162 See A60 above. 
 
Q163 If the successful Bidder submits the apparent low bid for both bid sheets, can that 

Bidder select either the Outside the Town of Paradise contract or Town of Paradise 
contract rather than simply be assigned the County contract (Section VI)? 

 
A163 No. If one Contractor submits the apparent low bid for both bid sheets, that Contractor 

will be awarded the Agreement for work outside the Town of Paradise (East Camp Fire 
(Concow), West Camp Fire, and North Central (Magalia) Branches). The Contractor 
with the next lowest bid for work in the Town of Paradise (East Paradise and West 
Paradise Branches) will be awarded the second Agreement. See page 41 of the IFB.   

 
Q164 Bid Item 3 Delays: Why is the payment for this item limited to 4 hours?  There could be 

situations where a longer wait period is encountered or situations where no other 
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locations for the crew to mobilize to.  The bid item should have no hour limit per 
occurrence. 

 
A164 CalRecycle anticipates that delays beyond four (4) hours in duration are unreasonable.  

In the event hazard tree removal work is anticipated to be delayed longer than four (4) 
hours, the Contractor shall make provisions to direct Hazard Tree Removal Crews to 
other work or to terminate their working day.    

 
Q165 Will the Contractor be subject to the $10,000 fine/tree in the event a tree was improperly 

marked by others, e.g., the Monitoring Consultant or any other authorized 
representative of the state and removed by the Contractor? 

 
A165 The Prime Contractor shall take measures to ensure it only removes authorized pre-

marked hazard trees.  In the event of unauthorized tree removal, CalRecycle will seek 
appropriate remedy from the responsible party pursuant to the “Contractor’s 
Responsibility” clause set forth in Exhibit B which is common to all contracts for this 
Operation.  CalRecycle advises all parties to maintain robust records of tree removal 
activities to help attribute responsibility in the event unauthorized tree removal occurs. 

 
Q166 Will the removal of unmarked trees as authorized by the Operations Chief be paid at the 

same rate as a hazardous tree (IFB Section – Other Financial Provisions)? 
 
A166 No, costs associated with the removal of any non-hazard trees to permit the safe felling 

and removal of hazard trees are the responsibility of the contractor and are not subject 
to additional compensation.  Non-hazard trees may not be removed unless expressly 
approved by the Operations Chief or designee as described on page 37 of the IFB.   

   
 
Q167 Section III - Bid Submittal Requirements. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic and shelter-

in-place limitations is electronic proposal submittal acceptable and is there a file size 
limitation for emails sent to CalRecycle? 

 
A167 Referencing page 19 in the IFB, bidders must follow the bid submittal requirements.  

Number of Copies 
The Bidder is required to submit all required documents in the following format: 

• One original, non-bound hard copy marked "Original" (do not include bid sheet in 
this copy). 

• One electronic copy on USB flash drive viewable by Adobe Acrobat Reader (do 
not include bid sheet in this copy). 

• One complete, signed cost bid sheet (Attachment A) in a separate sealed 
envelope marked "Bid – Do Not Open". 

 
 
Q168 Page 9 of the IFB states that the Bid Opening will be scheduled for 2:00 p.m. on July 2, 

2020. Page 40 of the IFB indicates that “The qualified bids (sealed) will be opened 
publicly at the CalEPA building at 1001 I Street, Training Room 2 East/West, 
Sacramento, CA at the time set in Section I Overview, Process Schedule.”  
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Given the current restrictions due to COVID-19, please confirm if the bid opening will be 
an in-person, public event, or if it will be video streamed so all participants can attend? 

 
A168 The bid opening will be a public event via webcast by visiting 

https://video.calepa.ca.gov/ for a list of Live Public Meetings. Please select the meeting 
title "DRR19067 Bid Opening". 

 
Q169 Page 20 of the IFB, Qualifications and Resources, Item 3, states: “Have completed at 

least two projects in the last five years removing dead or dying trees, fire trees, or 
hazard trees for a public agency within public rights of way of $2 million or greater” 
Does work completed for PG&E count as work for a public agency? 

 
A169  See A47 above. 

 
Q170 Under “Qualifications and Resources” it states that “Each Prime Contractor Shall” “1. Be 

a State of California Licensed Timber Operator”.  In the case that the bid is being 
submitted on behalf of a Joint Venture, do all parties of the JV need to hold an LTO 
license? 

 
A170 See A77 and A153 above. 
 
Q171 In reference to Bonding information on page 24 of IFB, our understanding is that a 

new performance and payment bond is issued for each and every Work Order. Could 
you clarify if our understanding is correct? If so, can we consider the bond is released 
upon completion of the relevant Work Order? 

 
A171 See A43 for revisions to the Payment and Performance Bonds.   

 
Q172 Page 20 of the IFB states that the prime contractor must have completed at least 2 

projects in the last 5 years removing dead or dying trees, fire trees, or hazardous trees 
for a public agency, within public ROW of 2 million dollars or greater.  

 
p.21 states The Bidder shall provide references for a minimum of two (2) projects 
removing dead or dying trees, fire trees, or hazard trees for a public agency within 
public rights of way (as part of a California Timber Harvest Plan or Exemption), 
performed as a prime contractor 

   
These appear to be the same requirement. Can these 2 project references come from 
any public agency or do they have to be part of a California Timber Harvest Plan or 
Exemption? 

 
A172 Project references can come from any public agency. As stated on page 21 of the IFB, 

work must have been completed pursuant to a California Timber Harvest Plan or 
Exemption. 

 
Q173 Why are we not on the Addendum and how do we rectify the situation? 
 

https://video.calepa.ca.gov/
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A173 All attendees who registered to attend the mandatory pre-bid meeting should be 
included on the list. Please fill out the Contact Form listed on the contracts page to be 
updated on any notifications pertaining to this Contract. 

 
Q174 Are there any Skilled & Trained Workforce requirements applicable to this project? 
 
A174 Potential bidders are advised that the Department of Industrial Relations is the lead 

enforcement agency for skilled and trained workforce requirements. As such,  
CalRecycle cannot make a final determination on specific requirements under the 
enforcement authority of the Department of Industrial Relations. A copy of DIR’s 
determination, as applicable to the Hazard Tree Removal Program, is provided as 
reference only for potential bidders. Contractors shall be responsible for enforcement of 
prevailing wage laws. Contractors are advised to consult Department of Industrial 
Relations regarding skilled and trained workforce requirements.  

 
Q175 Are operations performed at the required offsite facilities to be used subject to California 

prevailing wage? 
 
A175 See A60 above. 
 
Q176 Are outside services related to this project subject to California prevailing wage? 
 
A176 See A60 above. 
 
Q177 Will the project have any special protocols related to COVID-19? 
 
A177 See A81 above. 
 
Q178 With the scope of work for this project being primarily tree work, will this project require 

a D49 license? 
 
A178 See A40 above. 
 
Q179 What is the reason for delaying the bid opening date 8 days after the bid submittal date? 

How will contractors confirm that no bids were received after the bid due date and prior 
to the bid opening date? How will contractors confirm that their bid package has not 
been tampered with during the time period between the bid submittal date and bid 
opening date? 

 
A179 Bids will be due June 24, and opening July 2 as stated in the process schedule. The 

time in between is needed for proper evaluation of the bids submitted. No bids will be 
accepted after 2:00 p.m. June 24. Bid packages will remain sealed from the bid 
submittal date until the bid opening. 

 
Q180 Are non-CSLB licensed contractors able to perform work on this project? 
 



California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery 
Question and Answer - DRR19067 

 
 

38 
 

A180 No, contractors must be licensed by the Contractors State License Board, Potential 
bidders are advised to consult Business and Professions Code section 7048.  

 
Q181 Can previous experience as a subcontractor qualify to meet the past-project 

requirements to bid as a prime contractor and/or JV partner bidding prime for the 
DRR19067 Tree Removal for the Camp Fire Project? 

 
A181 The Prime Contractor must meet the minimum qualifications as specified in the IFB’s 

page 20-22. See A77 above for additional information on Joint Ventures.   
 
Q182 Are companies or their affiliates (common ownership/officers/directors) that are 

designated as end-use facilities (biomass or wood materials utilization facilities) allowed 
to submit an IFB response as a prime, JV partner, or subcontractor? 

 
A182 Prime contractors must meet the minimum requirements as referenced in pages 20-22 

of the IFB. 
 
Q183 Will this project be subject to Skilled and Trained Workforce requirements? 
 
A183 See A174.  
 
Q184 The RFP states bidders must “Identify and Provide Temporary Log Storage and 

Processing Site(s)/Equipment Staging Area(s) (facility(ies)) location(s), from the tables 
below, that the Contractor plans to use for the storage and/or processing of wood 
materials as part of this Operation”. Will these sites be considered as part of the site of 
work? And will work being performed on these sites in the execution of the contract be 
subject to the payment of prevailing wages? 

 
A184 See A60 above. 
 
Q185 The RFP states bidders must “provide truck weigh scales at each log storage and 

processing yard and allow space for CalRecycle’s Consultant, the OC and its authorized 
representatives to determine truck weights entering the yard loaded from the tree felling 
operation and leaving the yard loaded, heading for the end use facilities”. Will these 
scales be considered as part of the site of work? And will work being performed on 
these scales in the execution of the contract be subject to the payment of prevailing 
wages?  

 
A185 Section V Description of work, Work to be performed, item 18 refers to scales for 

weights on trucks. It is expected that consultant contractor shall operate the scales 
without the need contractor personnel. Personnel may be required to secure equipment 
during non-work hours. Potential bidders are advised to consult with the Department of 
Industrial Relations, who is the lead agency for prevailing wage enforcement, for 
prevailing wage determinations.  

 
Q186 Will all trucking in the execution of this contract be subject to prevailing wage? 
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A186 See A60 above. 
 
Q187 In line with the IFB statement on page 4, “Bond Info”, it appears you are asking for a 

notarized statement from our bonding company that they will guarantee our 
performance to the extent of a minimum of 25% of the total Agreement amount? 

 
A187 See A43 for changes to the Payment and Performance Bonds.  
 
Q188 In that context, if we were to assume, we would qualify for the second Agreement 

($243,000,000), our minimum bond would then be $60,750,000 and the notarized 
statement would so specify? 

 
A188 See A43 for changes to the Payment and Performance Bonds.  
 
Q189 The additional information suggests the bond requirement would not be applied as a 

single overall amount but would rather be based on the value of and applied to each 
applicable Work Order. Thus, a much smaller bond would be required incrementally? 

 
A189 See A43 for changes to the Payment and Performance Bonds.  
 
Q190 Please clarify whether our understanding is correct that the Performance and Payment 

bonding requirement is to be calculated and applied to each work order and is to be 
provided prior to implementation of each Work Order as opposed to a one-time whole-
contract figure? 

 
A190 See A43 for changes to the Payment and Performance Bonds.  
 
Q191 For the small business certification would this project be considered public works? 

There is a small business certification and a small business public works (SBPW) 
needed to find out which one is acceptable for this Bid.  

 
A191 Small Business for the Purpose of Public Works (SBPW) will not be an acceptable 

certification for small business preferences.  
 
Q192 What specific Class LTO is required, i.e., A, B, or C? 
 
A192 Type A License for an LTO will be needed for this project. 
 
Q193 What are the requirements for Prime Contractor self-performance? 
 
A193 There are no self-performance requirements for the Prime Contractor. 
 
Q194 Will additional Log Storage and Processing Sites / Staging Areas not listed in the IFB be 

accepted for use? 
 
A194 No. See A127 above. 
 



California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery 
Question and Answer - DRR19067 

 
 

40 
 

Q195 Will CalRecycle allow combined Prime and Subcontractor experience to satisfy the 
following, 
 
Page 3, 3. “Have completed at least two projects in the last five years removing dead or 
dying tree, fire, trees, or hazard tree for a public agency within public rights of way of $2 
million or greater;” and 
 
Page 21, b., References: “The Bidder shall provide references for a minimum of two (2) 
projects removing dead or dying trees, fire trees, or hazard trees for a public agency 
within public rights of way (as part of a California Timber Harvest Plan or Exemption), 
performed as a prime contractor.” 

 
A195 No. Prime Contractors must meet the minimum requirements, as specified in the IFB’s 

page 20-22 or be deemed ineligible.  
 
Q196 P.15 states that if the bidder certifies to subcontract a minimum of 25% of the total 

services to a California Certified SB or MB will receive 5% preference. P.16 then states 
that the bidder will receive a 3-5% preference for the utilization of DVBEs for 3-5% of 
the total contract services. P.17 states “For the SB and DVBE participation preferences, 
the maximum limit of the combined preferences is 15% of the bid amount and, in no 
case, more than $100,000.00 per solicitation.”   

 
a. If the maximum limit of SB and DVBE utilization is 15%, how are we to reach the 

25% goal? 
b. Is the remaining 10% to go to MBs? 

 
A196 CalRecycle’s SB and DVBE policies are in line with standard state procurement 

practices and policies. Contractors may submit bids in accordance with the SB/MB 
preferences and DVBE incentives described in the IFB.  

 
Q197 Does the Proposal need to be in a specific format, or does it simply need to contain all 

required information? 
 
A197 Referencing page 19 in the IFB,  

"Number of Copies 
The Bidder is required to submit all required documents in the following format: 

• One original, non-bound hard copy marked "Original" (do not include bid sheet in 
this copy). 

• One electronic copy on USB flash drive viewable by Adobe Acrobat Reader (do 
not include bid sheet in this copy). 

• One complete, signed cost bid sheet (Attachment A) in a separate sealed 
envelope marked "Bid – Do Not Open"." 

 
Q198 P.40 states that the bid sheet or sheets must be submitted in separately sealed 

envelopes with special labeling. 
a. Is each pricing to go in its own envelope? 



California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery 
Question and Answer - DRR19067 

 
 

41 
 

b. Please confirm only one technical proposal is required if bidding on 
both contracts. 

 
A198 A.) Yes B.) One sealed envelope with two proposals submitted within sealed and 

separate. 
 

Q199 Please confirm Attachment C.2 is a post award document 
 
A199 We are requiring this to be filled out and submitted with the bid. 
 
Q200 Is the top section on the bid check list everything that is required to submit a bid and is 

that considered the bid packet? If there are other forms can you please specify what 
they are? 

 
A200 All forms listed on the Bid Completion checklist on page 126 in the IFB will be required. 

No additional forms will be required to submit the bid. 
 
Q201 Would Cal Recycle consider changing the CSLB requirements to include “either/or” 

language that would allow a prime bidder to have either a Class A or a C61/D49 
license? 

 
A201 No. See A40 above.  
 
Q202 With ROE's being negotiated by CalRecycle, what is the expected distance of the 

marked tree from the public ROW? 
 
A202 The initial CAL FIRE survey found the tallest tree to be 130-feet tall. Twice the height of 

the tree or an estimated fall radius of 260-feet could be the expected maximum distance 
of a hazard tree from public right of way of infrastructure. 

  
Q203 Please address the minimum insurance requirements for the project and who are the 

parties that need to be listed as additional insured? 
 
A203 Minimum insurance requirements are described in Attachment J of the IFB.  Potential 

bidders are advised that additional insurance requirements may be necessary, as 
determined by other state agencies. For example, CalFIRE requires specific insurance 
requirements as part of the LTO Type “A” license required to bid on this IFB. A letter 
from CalFIRE regarding insurance requirements is offered For Reference only for 
potential bidders; potential bidders are advised to consult with the appropriate state 
agencies to determine insurance requirements.  

 
Q204 Can bonds be stacked, when contractors partner, to meet the bonding requirements? 

Same question for IFB qualifications. 
 
A204 Members of a Joint Venture agreement must meet the individual qualifications as 

required by Prime Contractors. For bonding requirements, the submitted joint venture 
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agreement must provide documentation to provide sufficient bonding coverage for the 
joint venture.  

 
Q205 Are contractors required to have a D49 add-on license? 
 
A205 No. See A60 above. 
 
Q206 Would you please provide more specific details in regards to what is defined as a "major 

office" with respect to the California only restriction? 
 
A206 Contractors, including any proposed subcontractor, must meet the requirements set 

forth in Attachment G, California Only Restriction, or be deemed ineligible.  
 
Q207 Is there a minimum % of work required to be self-performed by the prime contractor? 
 
A207 No. See A193 above.  
 
Q208 The end-users pay by the bone-dry ton (BDT) and the IFB asks for a green ton. Please 

clarify? 
 
A208 Dispatch weight tickets will be issued for tracking purposes only. Contracts 
between the End Use Facilities and the Contractors are a separate agreement without 
CalRecycle. Payment methods green ton or bone dry ton will be the contractors’ 
responsibility. 

Q209 Is hostile wildfire insurance coverage required? If so, to what extent? 
 
A209 CalRecycle’s minimum insurance requirements are described in Attachment J of the 

IFB.  Potential bidders are advised that additional insurance requirements may be 
necessary, as determined by other state agencies. Contractors are also free to obtain 
additional insurance coverages as a risk management tool.  

 
Q210 Is there a limit to how many subcontractor tiers from the prime contractor are allowed? 
 
A210 No, but the Prime Contractor remains liable for performing the Scope of Work.  
 
Q211 Are the marked trees going to have GPS coordinates when they are provided to us? 
 
A211 Yes.  
 
Q212 Are any of the ROE’s on BLM (Bureau of Land Management) land? 
 
A212 Federal properties are exempt from the program, and will not be part of the State 

Hazard Tree Removal Program. 
 
Q213 Under Qualifications and Resources, it states that the Prime Contractor shall “have 

completed at least two projects in the last five years removing dead or dying trees, fire 
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trees, or hazard trees for a public agency within public rights of way of $2 million or 
greater”.  Assuming that it totals more than the $2M minimum, does work completed for 
various utility companies in California (PG&E, So Cal Edison, SDG&E, SMUD, etc.) 
serve to meet this requirement as many of these activities include public agencies such 
as Cal Trans, USFS and various other state and local county rights of way? 

 
A213 See A47 above. 

Q214 The final disposal of salvage materials and/or debris to plants and mills are associated 
with very long hauls to the approved facilities. Logging trucks hauling six days a week 
will increase diesel emissions, reduce air quality, adding to road congestion, increase 
noise levels and likely result in accidents while impacting the communities along the 
route. Have communities been advised of these impacts and do they support this 
increase in trucking activity associated with this project? Do we need to plan on 
interruption of our hauling operations based on any community or community leaders 
providing feedback or demands to CalRecycle or other government agencies or officials 
to modify our operations? Do we need to plan on participation in various meetings with 
these communities as part of this project? If so, what would be the frequency or 
schedule? We want to avoid unplanned and costly interruptions associated with adverse 
community activities due to lack of project support? If interruptions or unplanned 
meetings occur, will the Prime Contractor be entitled to delay or reimbursement costs 
per the contract? 

 
A214 Refer to Caltrans Traffic Management Plan and page 33 of the IFB, Item 3 “Delays” 
 
Q215 Will Heli-logging be allowed to address certain situations based on safety, site access 

and cost reasons. If so, how would that be priced in the bid? 
 
A215 It is unlikely heli-logging is necessary or appropriate for this Operation. Any such 

proposal is subject to review and approval by Contract Manager.  
 
Q216 Will the CalRecycle Hazard Tree Monitoring contractor track all eligible materials 

collected/cut on this project through final disposal to make sure the wood or chip is 
converted to “green energy” which is the intent of the restriction to use approved plants? 
Where will the monitoring contractor station their load inspectors at the power plant and 
how will they track each load? Will we as primes be held responsible for final disposal 
all the "waste",i.e. removed eligible wood, as in normal debris operations to reach close-
out? This includes resolution of all load tickets and insuring proper disposal of all 
materials? 

 
A216 Prime Contractors are responsible for safe delivery of wood materials to each 

respective end use facility.  The end use facility assumes ownership and responsibility 
for the wood materials upon recorded receipt of the wood materials.  

 
Q217 Some plants plan on sorting logs to look for commercially viable logs they can sell to 3rd 

parties for a substantial profit. Some plants will plan on selling chip or logs to other 
users such a log home building, mills, etc. for profit and especially if they cannot 
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consume all the material in the plant in a timely manner. Wood or chip that is not 
consumed in the plant, but resold as commercial products, should be re-bated to the 
Prime contractor with savings passed on to the taxpayer via a fair market value timber 
salvage or chip credit. How resell of logs or chip be accounted for and tracked by the 
Monitoring contractor during this project? 

 
A217 All wood materials removed from the ROW or non-ROW properties with ROEs, as part 

of the State Tree Removal program must ultimately be taken to Contract Manager and 
IMT pre-approved end use facilities.  Following the recorded receipt of wood materials 
by a pre-approved end use facility, the pre-approved end use facility may use the wood 
materials in any manner prescribed by law.  Any rebates, credits, or savings derived 
from the legal use of those wood materials should be described in agreements between 
the Prime Contractors and the respective end use facilities.  Any revenue obtained by 
the contractor through these agreements must be disclosed to CalRecycle. The unit 
costs are per each pre-marked hazard tree and shall include several factors described 
on pages 34 and 35 of the IFB. See A32 above. Wood materials become the property of 
the End Use facility once received. 

 
Q218 Fair bidding - It is suggested that these approved sites publish a unit rebate or unit cost 

with associated material specification for all primes to reference in the bidding process. 
This should be for whole log green ton and green ton chip for use in bidding (ideally 
deducts for salvage). This will level the playing field between bidders and avoid 
preferential or predatory pricing based on an artificially constrained market. Will the 
Monitoring contractor track all logs and materials sold by the power plants to assess 
final credit, align with FEMA accounting practices for salvage material credits and 
validate disposal per FEMA PA requirements for the prime contractor? 

 
A218 See A217 above. 
 
Q219 Fair and standard pricing to all bidders - why should privately owned power plants be 

enabled to engage in charging Prime contractors differing pricing for wood or chip that 
they normally pay for in normal operation of their business? Shouldn't the price or credit 
per unit, green log tons or chip, be the same regardless of the prime and should they 
have to disclose their pricing in a public forum? It seems that these plants could 
accidentally or intentionally work with a prime to insure they have the winning bid if cost 
is a selection factor? Would that be grounds for protest if it is revealed that a plant set 
pricing to a prime in an arbitrarily and capricious manner that resulted on the prime not 
being selected based on price or favored a specific prime bidder? How will Cal Recycle 
account for this aspect in the bidding and evaluation process to level the playing field? 

 
A219 See A217 above 
 
Q220 FEMA PA requires subgrantees and contractors to reduce their price by all applicable 

credits, such as insurance proceeds and salvage values per Stafford Act 312, 42 USC 
5155, and 2 CFR 200.406. The intent is to avoid double payment for the same item, 
reimbursement for an artificial cost and/or incurring an artificially inflated cost borne by 
the taxpayer. That said, the IFB mandates, or highly rewards proposers, in the selection 
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process to transport wood to several “approved” privately-owned for-profit power plants 
that then convert the wood or wood chip to energy for commercial sale onto the electric 
grid. The owners of these plants are benefiting from this IFB mandate and restricted 
market conditions. These power plants normally pay for fuel, wood and wood chip, as 
part of their normal business model in the same manner that coal or gas plants pay for 
their energy supply such as coal or natural gas. They have negotiated Power Purchase 
Agreements with utilities and resellers based on this normal and customary cost which 
is transferred to the ratepayers and system users i.e. per their utility bills. Doesn't this 
make the wood and especially Wood Chip a salvage product, like steel, and the plants 
that sell energy produced from this material should credit the project with some offset 
based on receiving free wood product that is some substantial part of the cost to 
produce power they sell per FEMA PA? 

 
A220 In addition to A217 above, potential bidders are advised to include the salvage value, if 

any, in their bid prices. Potential bidders are advised that any monetary consequences, 
such as taxes, fees, and profits generated from the wood material will be the sole 
responsibility of the bidders and should be included in the unit price in the bid cost 
sheet.  Any revenue obtained by the contractor through these agreements must be 
disclosed to CalRecycle. Otherwise, direct questions regarding FEMA reimbursement 
rules are beyond the scope of the IFB solicitation documents.  

 
Q221 On page 23 of the IFB, the “California Only Restriction” is not consistent with FEMA 

Public Assistance guidance by implementing a local geographic preference and the 
project may be ineligible for reimbursement per federal requirements under the Stafford 
Act. This artificial restriction is in violation of the Stafford Act and guidance issued 
through the Federal Emergency Management Public Assistance. The FEMA 
Contracting Requirements Checklist Release Number: DR-4337-FL FS 00 also 
identifies local geographic preference restrictions as an ineligible procurement approach 
for FEMA PA reimbursement. This project is funded in part with Federal funds through 
the Stafford Act which is paid for by taxpayers from across the United States to aid local 
communities recover. The Stafford Act and associated federal funding requirements 
apply. Second, these types of restrictions artificially inflate pricing and add project risks 
to a constrained local resource environment. This project will be executed at the height 
of forestry fuel reduction and logging season and will compete for those resources. 
Additional resources will be required from outside CA to complete this project in a timely 
and cost-effective manner. We anticipate protests based on this requirement resulting in 
delays of an award and impacting the overall project execution schedule. We request 
this local procurement preference be removed from the IFB to enable a fair and open 
competition consistent with Federal Funding requirements. 

 
A221 Questions regarding FEMA reimbursement rules and regulations are outside of the 

purview of the IFB’s solicitation documents. The California Only Restriction will remain 
in place.  

 
Q222 We own a 66-acre site in Anderson, California where we operate a post and pole mill 

and firewood production facility. More importantly, we recently began serving as a wood 
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yard for PG&E, where they are depositing their oversized material from vegetation 
management programs in the North State. We are fully permitted, have scales and 
chipper/hog/chip bin infrastructure. And we are six miles from Wheelabrator's 
Cottonwood BioRAM facility.  

 
While we are not in Butte County proper, we are wondering if we could qualify as a Log 
Storage and Processing Facility/Laydown Yard. Given our proximity to Wheelabrator, 
we believe we would be a useful partner/sub-contractor to anyone bidding on the 
project.  

 
Is it too late to get included in the list of approved Facilities for this contract? 

 
A222 Yes, it is too late to get included. See A127 above. 
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The following questions below were received during the Mandatory Pre-Bid Conference held Thursday, May 28, 2020. 

 

 
Q1. Is there a minimum and maximum crew size? 
 
A1. Per the IFB page 58 under Definitions, the maximum number of a crew is considered to be seven (7) personnel. The minimum 
number and equipment needed shall vary by tree complexity and a crew needs. Noting that contractor shall be obligated to those 
tasks specified in Work to be performed under Section V, Description of Work. 
 
Q2. We met with CalOES and CalRecycle to be listed as a 25% tree removal end use site (Living Elements)? 
 
A2. The site was requested to be listed as both a potential log deck and end-use facility. However, because the site was not 
operational prior to the release of the IFB, it was listed as a potential log deck site only. 
 
Q3. With ROE's being negotiated by CalRecycle, what is the expected distance of the marked tree from the public ROW? 
 
A3. The initial CalFIRE survey found the tallest tree to be 130-feet tall. Twice the height of the tree or an estimated fall radius of 
260-feet could be the expected maximum distance of a hazard tree from public right of way of infrastructure. 
 
Q4. Is CalRecyle confident that the listed BioMass facilities have capacity to receive the 75% of material? 
 
A4. Yes, and having multiple Bio Mass facility options helps to ensure this. 
 
Q5. How many contractors will be given contracts?  
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A5. CalRecycle anticipates awarding two (2) separate Agreements: one Agreement for work inside the Town of Paradise and one 
Agreement for work outside the Town of Paradise. See Page 6 of the IFB. . 
 
Q6. Is this a line clearing union project?  
 
A6. Yes. As determined by California Department of Industrial Relations, this IFB is subject to prevailing wage. See Page 38 of the 
IFB. 
 
Q7. Will Cal Recycle provide a manifest reflecting diameter size breakdowns of the sampled trees? 
 
A7. A manifest will not be provided as to the size breakdown and numbers of trees prior to work. The only information relating the 
tree totals is the CalFire Tree Inventory Sampling as Miscellaneous 1 in the bid information The Assessment and Monitoring 
Consultant will be noting the height, diameter and type of trees when they are assessed. This information will be available to the 
Contractors once the operation commences. 
 
Q8. Is personal air monitoring required as part of this IFB?  
 
A8. The IFB does not include provisions for personal air monitoring by Contractors’ personnel.  However, at their own discretion 
and cost, Contractors may choose to require their personnel to conduct personal air monitoring.  The Assessment and Monitoring 
Consultant will  be conducting community and property specific air monitoring on a portion of the tree removal crew properties to 
determine if there are any residual contaminants left in the trees and released from them during the hazard tree felling and removal 
operation.  
 
Q9. Our Ophir Road site was qualified as a 25% end use site but is not listed how can we remedy that?  
 
A9. The site was requested to be listed as both a potential log deck and end-use facility. However, because the site was not 
operational prior to the release of the IFB, it was listed as a potential log deck site only. 
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Q10. Is this a DIR prevailing wage project?  
 
A10. Refer to A6 in Attachment 1. 
 
Q11. Please address the minimum insurance requirements for the project and who are the parties that need to be listed as additional 
insured? 
 
A11. Minimum insurance requirements are described in Attachment J of the IFB.  
 
Q12. How is this bid's requirements for CA only companies reconciled with the Federal government's (2 CFR 200) 
requirements regarding restrictions on geographic restrictions of bidders? 
 
A12. Questions regarding FEMA reimbursement rules are outside of the scope of this contract sollicitation Q&A. The 
California Only Restriction will remain in place.  
 
Q13. Is there specific language required for a "Commitment Letter" from disposal entities? Term? Price? Volume...etc.? 
 
A13. The Letters of Commitment from selected Wood Materials End Users to the Prime Contractor shall include sufficient 
information to demonstrate that the prospective bidder and Wood Materials End User(s) have established in good faith and fair 
dealing a reasonable agreement to accept Operation resource materials in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.    
Letters of Commitment should contain all necessary language to permit the contractor to execute the work as described in Section V 
of this IFB without unreasonable delay. 
 
Q14. Will this work continue during winter of 2020? 
 
A14. Completing the work in dry weather conditions would be ideal, but work could continue into wet weather conditions, if 
necessary. Potential bidders should also consult the Environmental Protection Plan and Environmental Compliance Plan for 
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additional restrictions on work in certain areas of the project during certain seasons.  The Environmental Protection Plan and 
Environmental Compliance Plan documents are labeled “Miscellaneous 3” on CalRecycle’s website.   
 
Q15. Bid opening is 7/2, but IFB page 7 says work commencement by 6/29, not later than 7/13. Please clarify?  
 
A15. This range was initially given to allow for a date as early as 6/29 to start work. Based on the current schedule, Process 
Schedule on page 9 will stand, and commencement of work will be no later than July 13, 2020.  
 
Q16. Can bonds be stacked, when contractors partner, to meet the bonding requirements? Same question for IFB 
qualifications. 
 
A16. See A204 from the Questions and Answers Period section.  
 
Q17. Can one contractor be awarded both projects?  
 
A17. No. Prospective bidders may submit bids for either or both Agreements, but the two Agreements will be awarded to 
separate Contractors. See Page 6 and limited exceptions on Page 41 of the IFB. 
 
Q18. Can trees less than 6 inches dbh be mechanically masticated at site instead of hauled away? 
 
A18. See A12 above. Any wood product left onsite must meet the requirements listed in Section V, page 50, Item 25. 
 
Q19. What is the combined maximum SBE/DVBE Percentage that will be considered in contract award? 
 
A19. Refer to the IFB’s page 17, which says, “For the SB and DVBE participation preferences, the maximum limit of the 
combined preferences is 15% of the bid amount and, in no case, more than $100,000.00 per solicitation.” 
 
Q20. Are contractors required to have a D49 add-on license? 
 
A20. No. Contractors and their subcontractors are required to follow all applicable laws and regulations.  The Hazard Tree 
Removal Operation is subject to the Forest Practice Act and Rules and considered a “commercial timber operation.” All 
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“commercial timber operations” must be conducted by a Licensed Timber Operator (LTO).  A California Contractors State 
License Board D-49 - Tree Service Contractor license is not required for the Hazard Tree Removal Operation. 
 
Q21. If you are the successful bidder for both contracts, can you choose which one you would prefer to perform? 
 
A21. No. If one Contractor submits the apparent low bid for both bid sheets, that Contractor will be awarded the Agreement for 
work outside the Town of Paradise (East Camp Fire (Concow), West Camp Fire, and North Central (Magalia) Branches). The 
Contractor with the next lowest bid for work in the Town of Paradise (East Paradise and West Paradise Branches) will be awarded 
the second Agreement. See page 41 of the IFB. 
 
Q22. Which collection software will be used for cataloging the trees? 
 
A22. The Field Management Consultant will catalogue eligible trees using a Survey 123 data collection software.  CalRecycle 
anticipates the Field Management Consultant will also deploy an Automated Debris Management System (ADMS) to track and 
record other aspects of the operation necessary to substantiate federal reimbursement. 
 
Q23. In the bid schedule A1 and A2, are they combined prices and should they reflect the same cost? 
 
A23. The bid price for each contracted portion of the operation (eg,Town and County) will only be applicable to its 
corresponding bid schedule, and they will not be combined. They do not need to reflect the same cost. 
 
Q24. Are there any requirements for dedicated Safety to employee ratio? 
 
A24. No.  Contractors must comply with all relevant safety regulations and their submitted Health and Safety Plan. 
 
Q25. The IFB mentions that the contract is for 450,000 trees. One of the slides mentioned 300,000 trees. Which one is 
correct? 
 
A25. The IFB’s page 5 states that there may be up to 300,000 Hazard Trees (along both public and private road rights-of-
way), although this number is not guaranteed and may be reduced after the Contracts are awarded.  
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Q26. Would you please provide more specific details in regards to what is defined as a "major office" with respect to the 
California only restriction? 
 
A26. Potential bidders are advised to complete Attachment G, California Only Restriction, in its entirety, or may be deemed 
ineligible.  
 
Q27. Will the contractor pay for dump fees to the facilities? 
 
A27. Yes.  The Bid Schedule items include “[a]ny other items that could be reasonably anticipated to complete the described 
work”. See page 27 of the IFB 
 
Q28. Will this webinar overview be available to print out? 
 
A28. The PowerPoint presentation has been made available on the contracts page listed, "Pre-Bid Presentation". 
 
Q29. Are there any minimum equipment requirements for each crew? 
 
A29. Per the IFB page 58 under Definitions, Equipment shall be at the discretion of the contractor based on the work 
conditions. Noting that contractor shall be obligated to those tasks specified in Work to be performed under Section V, 
Description of Work. Potential bidders should also note that the Environmental Compliance Plan for this operation restricts 
certain types of equipment in certain areas of the project.  See page 372 and other relevant references of the Environmental 
Protection Plan and Environmental Compliance Plan document, labeled “Miscellaneous 2” on CalRecycle’s website.   
 
Q30. In all likelihood how much of the biomass material will likely be shipped to the "other wood end use facilities" and then 
processed into biomass fuel for shipment to a biomass power plant. Assuming this is acceptable? 
 
A30. That material shipped from the “other wood end use facilities” to biomass facilities will not be considered as part of the 
required 75% of the total material removed is shipped to a biomass power plant. Upon delivery to the identified end user 
facilities, material will be considered disposed of for the purposes of this operation.  Subsequent use or conversion of the 
material is not within the purview of this operation.  
 
Q31. Are subcontractors required to have their LTO or will a D49 license suffice? 
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A31. See Answer 20 in Attachment 1. 
 
Q32. Can end use facilities offer differing pricing to primes for the same work/materials? Can the end-use facilities offer price 
favoritism to primes which will impact selection? How do we get a level playing field as a prime?  
 
A32. The Letters of Commitment from selected Wood Materials End Users to the Prime Contractor shall include sufficient 
information to demonstrate that the prospective bidder and Wood Materials End User(s) have established in good faith and fair 
dealing a reasonable agreement to accept Operation resource materials in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations. 
 
Q33. Is there a minimum % of work required to be self-performed by the prime contractor? 
 
A33. No. 
 
Q34. What percentage of bond is required?  
 
A34. A 10% Bond is required of the Bidder’s Bid. Refer to page 24 of the IFB. See A43 in the Questions and Answers Period 
section for Performance and Payment Bond requirements.  
 
Q35. If subcontractors' experience can be added to Prime's for qualification, does the same go for other qualifications, or is 
this only applicable to the experience? 
 
A35. No, all prime contractors must meet the minimum qualifications listed in the IFB.  Potential bidders’ attention is directed 
to IFB’s page 20-22 for examples of subcontractor qualifications. 
 
Q36. Can Primes add subcontractors after award? 
 
A36. Yes, if all subcontractor resources listed in the bidder’s proposal have been exhausted.  Additionally, subcontractors 
added after award must meet the same requirements as subcontractors included in the bidder’s proposal, including the 
California Only Restriction.  CalRecycle must pre-approve substitutions of Subcontractors, including SB/MB and DVBE certified 
subcontractors. Potential bidders are advised that certified business participation levels remain unchanged.  Refer to page 17 
of the IFB. 
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Q37. Will an LTO Type A License be required? 
 
A37. Yes. 
 
Q38. Is a Feller-Buncher required for each Hazard Tree Removal Crew? 
 
A38. Per the IFB page 58 under Definitions, Equipment shall be at the discretion of the contractor based on the work 
conditions. Noting that contractor shall be obligated to those tasks specified in Work to be performed under Section V, 
Description of Work. Potential bidders should also note that the Environmental Compliance Plan for this operation restricts 
certain types of equipment in certain areas of the project.  See page 372 and other relevant references of the Environmental 
Protection Plan and Environmental Compliance Plan document, labeled “Miscellaneous 2” on CalRecycle’s website.   
 
Q39. Is a Feller-Buncher required on every crew even though there are sites where that equipment cannot safely or efficiently 
be utilized? 
 
A39. See A38 above in Attachment 1.   
 
Q40. Are all trees over 6" paid at the same price? 
 
A40. Yes. 
 
Q41. Will this presentation's recording be made available to review again later?  
 
A41. See A28 above in Attachment 1. 
 
Q42. Will the end use facilities (biomass power plants) be required to track wood chip deliveries separately for public and 
private wood ROW? 
 
A42. The Assessment and Monitoring Consultant will track wood chip deliveries separately for ROW and ROE trees at each 
end use facility. Dispatched trucks from each Wood Processing yards are tracked to End Use facilities, by the Consultant, as 
noted in Section V Description of Work.  
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Q43. Will certified payroll reports be required from both the Prime and all subcontractors?  
 
A43. The Contractor and each subcontractor, regardless of tier, shall keep an accurate payroll record showing the names, 
addresses, social security numbers, work classifications, straight time and overtime hours worked each day and week, and the 
actual per diem wages paid to each journeyman, apprentice, worker, or other employee employed by the Contractor and/or 
subcontractor in connection with the Work. Payroll records shall be certified and shall be on forms provided by the Division of 
Labor Standards Enforcement. The Contractor's and subcontractor's certified payroll records for each employee shall be 
submitted with each payment request, covering the period of the payment request unless requested otherwise by the Labor 
Commissioner of the Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code Section 1771.4(c)(2)(b) monthly payrolls 
should be sent directly to the Department of Industrial Relations in the current prescribed electronic format.  The Contractor 
shall regularly provide CalRecycle unredacted, completed certified payroll records to ensure compliance with Labor Code 
section 1776(b)(3).  
  
Q44. Will an estimated inventory of trees with sizes be required prior to the bid open date? 
 
A44. A manifest will not be provided as to the size breakdown and numbers of trees prior to work. The only information 
relating the tree totals is the CAL FIRE Tree Inventory Sampling as Miscellaneous 1 in the bid information. 
 
Q45. Can you share the names, company names and phone numbers of all participants of this webinar?  
 
A45. The list of company names and phone numbers has been made available within Addendum 2. 
 
Q46. If bidding as a joint venture do both partners need to meet the minimum qualifications? 
 
A46. See A77 above from the Questions and Answers Period section. 
 
Q47. On pages 67 and 68 bid schedule, there are two different ways to come up with cost, or are the two to reflect the same 
cost or be added together? 

A47. The bid price will only be applicable to its corresponding bid schedule, as each bid schedule represents a bid for a separate 
contracting area (eg,Town and County) and they will not be combined. They do not need to reflect the same cost. 
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Q48. If a joint venture was formed for the purpose of this project, will the JV entity itself (rather than the individual companies 
that comprise the JV) have to meet all of the requirements for the bidders? 
 
A48. See A77 above from the Questions and Answers Period section. 
 
Q49. Do you anticipate any difficult terrain where a helicopter or yarder may be needed? 
 
A49. It is anticipated that all of the trees shall be accessible by normal methods and equipment. There may be some terrain to 
deal with but helicopters are not currently anticipated as necessary to complete the scope of work.  
 
Q50. Can you clarify Traffic Control costs and permits delays associated etc.? 
 
A50. Traffic Control crews’ will be included in the bidding Contractor’s unit tree costs. See IFB’s pages 31 and 35. Contractors 
need to also refer to the Traffic Management Plan (See Attachment L), prepared specifically for this Operation. It considers 
traffic ingress and egress from the proposed Temporary Log Storage and Processing Sites/Staging Areas and end use facilities 
(Camp Fire Tree Removal Operations Butte County CA, Traffic Management Assessment/Plan, March 12, 2020). This plan will 
inform the Contractors of the precautions and traffic control measures that will be necessary for this Operation.  The Contractor 
is responsible for all permit fees.  Delays due to factors beyond the Contractor’s control may be eligible for delay payments.  
Delays which result from factors within the Contractor’s control are not eligible for payment. CalRecycle presumes that is well 
within the Contractors’ control to obtain timely permits. CalRecycle encourages the Contractors to notify the IMT as soon as it 
becomes aware of a potential permit delay.  The IMT may be able to provide assistance.  
 
Q51. Are there any fire safety requirements additional to standard forestry practices? 
 
A51. Under Hazard Tree Removal Per Property, starting on page 33 of the IFB. Page 36 State, "The Contractor is advised 
that the work is in a Wildland Fire Area and during the summer months the fire hazard is EXTREME. Fire safe conduct by the 
Contractor and Contractor’s employees is to be observed at all times." Other details follow in the IFB. Additionally, the 
Environmental Compliance Plan (ECP) states that the contractor may be required to develop and implement a fire prevention 
and suppression plan for all activities that have a risk of starting a wildfire.  See page 379 of the Environmental Protection Plan 
and Environmental Compliance Plan document, labeled “Miscellaneous 3” on CalRecycle’s website.   
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Q52. The dollar amount listed on page 6 and 7, is that the budget for each project?  
 
A52. The dollar amounts listed on page 6 and 7 will be the NTE amounts for each contract awarded. 
 
Q53. The end-users pay by the bone dry ton (BDT) and the IFB asks for a green ton. Please clarify. 
 
A53. Dispatch weight tickets will be issued for tracking purposes only. Contracts between the End Use Facilities and the 
Contractors are a separate agreement without CalRecycle. Payment methods green ton or bone dry ton will be the contractors’ 
responsibility. 
 
Q54. Does hazard tree and/or fire mitigation work for Utility companies (PG&E, SMUD, Edison, etc.) count toward the 
experience qualifications? 
 
A54. Yes. One of the two $2,000,000 projects may include hazard tree work for utility companies. The IFB’s Page 20 will be 
modified to read:  
 
Have completed at least two projects in the last five years removing dead or dying trees, fire trees, or hazard trees for a public 
agency within public rights of way of $2 million or greater. One of the two projects may include hazard tree removal work for 
California utility companies, so long as the project amounted to $2 million or greater. 
 
Q55. What is the quantity of trees in each of the two contracts? 
 
A55. The exact quantity of trees to be removed in this project is not known. Up to 300,000 Hazard Trees are believed to be 
eligible for tree removal within the fire burn area across both contract areas, based on the “Camp Fire – CalFire Tree Inventory 
Sampling”, October 18, 2019 (See Attachment K). This report presents estimated numbers of hazard trees along public and some 
private roads that could fall on public property and/or on private rights-of-way. The estimated number of hazard trees ranges 
between 280,779 trees to 303,473 trees (lower to higher confidence levels). See page 5 of the IFB and the Camp Fire – CalFire Tree 
Inventory Sampling identified as “Miscellaneous1” on the CalRecycle Contracts website. 
 
Q56. Is hostile wildfire insurance coverage required? If so, to what extent? 
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A56. Potential bidders’ are directed to IFB p. 105-106 for minimum insurance coverages required within the Hazard Tree 
Removal Program. The Contractor is responsible for obtaining any necessary insurance coverage to mitigate risk because 
inadequate or lack of insurance does not negate the Contractor’s obligations under this Agreement. In the event the insurance 
coverages obtained by the Contractor is broader in scope or the limits are higher than those required under this Agreement, 
such scope and limits available to the Contractor shall also be available and applicable to the State. 
 
 
Q57. Can CalRecycle please clarify award criteria? I.e. low bid + small business advantages? 
 
A57. Referencing page 40 in the IFB: 
Award of these Agreements will be to the lowest responsive responsible Bidders meeting all of the IFB requirements after 
preferences are applied as indicated in Section II Rules and Conditions. No single Bidder or firm will be awarded more than one 
(1) of the two (2) Agreements. The Bidders submitting the lowest responsive responsible bid for each of the two (2) Contract 
Areas as determined by the "Total Bid" line on each "Cost Bid Sheet" (Attachment A.1) will each be awarded an Agreement  
In the event of a tie, CalRecycle shall utilize a tie breaker to determine the winning Bidder. The tie breaker will be determined 
based on which bidder has the most SB and DVBE participation identified in the bid package.  
If one Contractor submits the apparent low bid for both bid sheets, that Contractor will be awarded the Agreement for work 
outside the Town of Paradise (East Camp Fire (Concow), West Camp Fire, and North Central (Magalia) Branches). The 
Contractor with the next lowest bid for work in the Town of Paradise (East Paradise and West Paradise Branches) will be 
awarded the second Agreement. CalRecycle reserves the right to not award any or all Agreements. In the event that 
CalRecycle does not receive enough bids to award both Agreements to separate Bidders, CalRecycle reserves the right to 
award both sections of the work to a single bidder, at its discretion. 
 
Q58. If we have mobile (wheeled) whole tree chippers that chips to biomass standards, can we chip and bypass a holding 
yard. 
 
A58. Wheeled chippers could be used on the project. It may be possible to bypass wood processing yards. Special 
dispatching would have to be proposed and approved by the IMT prior to use. Also, scale facilities will still be required to 
quantify the truck weight leaving the operating area and verifying the same weight entering the end use facility. 
 
Q59. Is there a limit to how many subcontractor tiers from the prime contractor are allowed? 
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A59. No. 
 
Q60. Is a General Contractor A license required of the Prime Contractor? Can a subcontractor hold the General Contractor A 
license? 
 
A60. The Prime Contractor must hold a CSLB “A” license to bid on this project. 
 
Q61. Can crews be ramped up faster than what was stated? 
 
A61. IFB page 7 & 8, The mobilization schedule listed on page 7 and table on page 8 of the IFB is the assumed deployment 
of crews. This schedule is unlikely to change but may be adjusted once work commences. 
 
Q62. Can crews be added quicker than schedule expectations? 
 
A62. See A61 above in Attachment 1. 
 

All other terms, conditions, and requirements of this Invitation for Bid will remain the same.  

If you have any questions relating to this solicitation process, please contact me by e-mail at contracts@calrecycle.ca.gov. 

Sincerely, 

{Original signed by} 

 
Luke Wainscott 
Contract Analyst 
Administrative Services Branch 
 
Additional Attachments: 

1. Attachment 2 contains CalRecycle’s list of registered attendees from the required Pre-Bid Meeting. 
2. Attachment 3 contains CalRecycle’s list of interested parties subscribed to IFB DRR19067 contract.

mailto:contracts@calrecycle.ca.gov
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Pre-Bid Meeting Registered Attendees for IFB DRR19067 
First Name Last Name Email Address Phone City State Company Zip Title Industry 

Adonis Agkis adonis@aetlab.co
m 

2834 N. Naomi. 
St. 

8182991682 Burbank CA American 
Environmental 
Testing 
Laboratory 

91504 Business 
Developmen
t Manager 

  

Alex Anaya alexanaya@aearbo
rists.com 

1282 Stabler Ln, 
Ste 630-118 

(530) 599-
8056 

Yuba 
City 

CA A&E Arborists 
Tree Care, Inc. 

95993   Other 

Anthony Ascencio aascencio@statewi
dess.com 

6479 Eastside 
Road 

530-691-
3377 

Redding CA Statewide Safety 
Systems 

96001 Branch 
Manager 

Transportat
ion & 
Distribution 

John Balobeck jbalobeck@nesglob
al.net 

1141 Sibley St 9255706751 Folsom CA NES, Inc. 95630 Director Consulting 

Logan Bamford logan.bamford@ap
exenterisesinc.com 

2162 Robinson 
St 

5304033183 Oroville CA Apex Enterprises 
Inc 

95965 President Other 

John Behrend johnnleona@aol.co
m 

15066 Fountain 
House Rd 

5306323528 Dobbins CA John Behrend 
Custom Logging 

95935 Owner Other 

Ryan Bellanca admin@bellaforestr
y.com 

340 Larsen 
Lane 

530 718-
0167 

Applega
te 

CA Bella Wildfire & 
Forestry Inc. 

95703 CEO Other 

William Bigelow wbigelow@ecc.net 1240 Bayshore 
Hwy 

415-720-
2112 

Burlinga
me 

CA ECC 94010 Logeitics 
Manager 

Consulting 

Andrew Boger aearborists@gmail.
com 

1282 Stabler Ln, 
Ste 630-118 

(530) 790-
5312 

Yuba 
City 

CA A&E Arborists 
Tree Care, Inc. 

95993 President Other 

Pam Bountham pam.bountham@ce
resenv.com 

8525 85th Ave. 
N. 

800-218-
4424 

Brookly
n Park 

MN Ceres 55443 Proposal 
Specialist 

Other 

Danielle Bradfield dbanchio@gmail.co
m 

PO Box 1411 530-927-
7095 

Quincy CA North Valley 
Resources 

95971 RPF #2808 Consulting 

Tim Bradford tim.bradford@p31.
enterprises 

4288 Hwy 70 4178508137 Oroville CA P31 Enterprises 95965 Ops 
manager 

Other 

Dawn Brown dawn.brown@cere
senv.com 

3825 85th Ave N 612 578 
0316 

Brookly
n Park 

MN Ceres 55443 Director of 
Marketing 
Communicat
ions - Asst 
Corporate 
Secretary 

Other 
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Gary Brown cspc.gary@gmail.c
om 

54566 RD 200 559-240-
4102 

North 
Fork 

CA Central Sierra 
Enterprise 

93643 Superintend
ent 

Other 

Jordan Brown jbrown@odinconstr
uction.com 

4740 Rocklin 
Road 

916-251-
5518 

Rocklin CA Odin 
Construction 
Solutions 

95677 Contracts 
Manager 

Other 

DeCarlo Bryant dbryant@coastal-
rg.com 

333 university 
Avenue 

916-769-
2997 

Sacram
ento 

CA Coastal 
Resource Group 

95825 President/C
EO 

Consulting 

Jim Burk biomasster@aol.co
m 

1132 Commons 
Drive 

5302190128 Woodla
nd 

CA JEB Consulting, 
Inc 

95825 Consultant Energy, 
Chemical, 
Utilities 

Craig Caballero ccaballero@papich
construction.com 

398 Sunrise 
Terrace 

1.805.503.0
219 

Arroyo 
Grande 

CA Papich 
Construction 

93420 Senior 
Project 
Manager 

Other 

Connor Callaghan connor.callaghan@
wilhelmllc.com 

120 Stony Point 
Rd. Ste 250 

7068365624 Santa 
Rosa 

CA Wilhelm LLC 95401 Manager Other 

Ellie Cardona estimating@anvilbu
ilders.com 

(415) 285-5005 4152855000 San 
Francisc
o 

CA Anvil Builders 94124 Estimating 
Admin 

  

Bradley Christiansen bradchristiansen@
markitforestry.com 

3151 S St., 
Apartment 250 

7195056051 Sacram
ento 

CA Markit Forestry 
Management, 
LLC 

95816 VP of 
Operations 

Other 

Salvatore Coniglio sconiglio@recology
.com 

                

Sara Davis sdavis@sierramtn.
net 

13919 Mono 
Way 

415-830-
0169 

Sonora CA SMCI/Obayashi 
Joint Venture 

95370 Administrato
r of Pre-
Construction 
Services 

Other 

Karl Dix karl.dix@ceresenv.
com 

6968 
Professional 
Parkway E 

  Sarasot
a 

FL Ceres Forestry 34240   Other 

Chad Dykstra chad@foothilltree.c
om 

6201 Enterprise 
Drive, Ste B 

5306211772 Diamon
d 
Springs 

CA Dykstra 
Enterprises, Inc. 

95619 CEO Other 

Jonathan Ferrucci jferrucci@enegix.co
m 

1115 W 
Sacramento Ave 
Ste 111 

9162014200 Chico CA   95926 CEO Other 
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Jack Fiori jackfiori@cal-
waste.com 

175 Enterprise 
Court, Suite A 

2094813723 Galt CA California Waste 
Recovery 
Systems 

95632   Transportat
ion & 
Distribution 

Bryce Fletcher bfletcher2200@gm
ail.com 

114 N Sunrise 
Ave.,  Suite A2 

2514228246 Rosevill
e 

CA SDR 95661 Operations 
Manager 

Other 

Kristy Fuentes kfuentes@drcusa.c
om 

110 Veterans 
memorial Blvd 
Suite 515 

888-721-
4372 

Metairie LA DRC Emergency 
Services, LLC 

70005 VicePreside
nt 

Other 

Buddy Fuzzell drichards@rpfes.ne
t 

520 Mineral 
Trace 

2056376949 Hoover AL RPF Emergency 
Services LLC 

35244     

Dorie Gayner dorie@g4enviro.co
m 

100 Railroad 
Avenue 

858-204-
6700 

Loyalton CA G4 
Environmental 

96118 Business 
Developmen
t 

Consulting 

Patrick Gayner pgayner@sierravall
eyent.com 

100 Railroad 
Ave 

858-204-
6800 

Loyalton CA G4 
Environmental 

96118 Director of 
Business 
Developmen
t 

Other 

Marcos Gomez mar15@mtfent.com 1180 iron Point 
Rd, 350 

5306264127 Lotus CA Mountain F 
Enterprises, Inc 

95651   Other 

Suzanne Grix sgrix@forgen.com 6558 Lonetree 
Blvd. 

916-462-
6426 

Rocklin CA Forgen 95765 Business 
Developmen
t 

Other 

Cary Gunn Gunn cary.7diamler@gm
ail.com 

25 Betsey way 831-238-
8003 

Chico CA Diamler Quarry 
mining site 

95928 Innovative 
Engineer / 
Mining 
Exploration 

Other 

Margarita Gusakovska
ya 

margarita.gusakovs
kaya@ceresenv.co
m 

3825 85th 
Avenue North 

(800) 218-
4424 

Brookly
n Park 

MN Ceres 55443 Market 
Research 
Analyst 

Other 

Matt H matt.h@gmail.com                 

Bob Hambrecht bobham@altacalro
undwood.com 

                

Robert Hambrecht rhh@allotropepartn
ers.com 

19195 Latona 
Road 

415 608 
4581 

Anderso
n 

CA Allotrope 
Partners 

96007 Partner Manufactur
ing 

Ashley Harpine aharpine@tsutrees.
com 

5531 Silverlode 
Dr 

5309193119 Placervil
le 

CA TSU/Tree 
Service 
Unlimited, INC. 

95667 CEO Other 
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David Harrell dharrell@gclnc.co
m 

750 Tallulah 
Road 

4044440066 Robbins
ville 

NC Graham County 
Land Company 

28771 Forestry 
Program 
Manager 

Other 

Robert Hart bhart@ecc.net 1090 King 
Georges Post 
Road, Suite 104 

2014075347 Edison NJ ECC 08837 Estimating 
Manager 

Other 

Shawn Hayse shayse@p31enterp
rises.com 

4288 Hwy 70 5309902412 Oroville CA P31 Enterprises 95965 CEO and 
General 
Manager 

Other 

Eric Helpenstell Helpenstell@praeto
rianfire.com 

22409 44th Ave 
Court East. 

3607312627 Spanaw
ay 

WA Praetorian Fire 
Rescue 

98387   Consulting 

John Hernandez john@coretreecare.
com 

28750 Pierce St 951 492 
1933 

Lake 
Elsinore 

CA Core Tree Care 92530 President Other 

Michael Hoke mhoke@pandj.com 10142 Parkside 
Drive 

919-740-
3471 

Knoxvill
e 

TN Phillips & Jordan, 
Inc. 

37922 Chief 
Estimator 

Other 

Scott Huffmaster scott.huffmaster@
mtfent.com 

1180 Iron Point 
Road 

530-713-
3061 

Folsom CA Mountain F 
Enterprises, Inc 

95630 Contract 
Specialist 

Energy, 
Chemical, 
Utilities 

Bucky Jackson bucky@GCLNC.co
m 

750 TALLULAH 
RD 

8284793581 Robbins
ville 

NC Graham County 
Land Company 

28771   Other 

Benjamin Jeffrey ben@road-
tech.com 

4151 S. Shingle 
Rd. 

5306720222 Shingle 
Spings 

CA Road-Tech 
Safety Services, 
Inc. 

95682 Vice 
President 

Other 

Zachary Johnson kansascitytreecare
@yahoo.com 

28750 Pierce St 91 Cornona CA Core Tree 92530 Superintend
ent 

  

Zachary Johnson zachudr1976@gma
il.com 

                

Ronnie Jordan rjordan@mowbrays
.com 

1845 Business 
Center Dr.,  
Suite 215 

919 605 
4571 

San 
Bernardi
no 

CA Mowbrays Tree 
Service 

92408 CEO Other 

Curt Josiassen curt@josiassenfar
ms.com 

PO Box 321 5308824237 Richvale CA Josiassen Farms 95974 President Manufactur
ing 

Eddie Juarez edjuarez@sukut.co
m 

4010 W 
Chandler Ave 

  Santa 
Ana 

CA Sukut/Odin/P31, 
Joint Venture 

92704 Vice 
President 

Other 

Karlee Kane karleekane@cal-
waste.com 

175 Enterprise 
Ct., Suite A 

2094192470 Galt CA Cal-Waste 95632 Senior Fire 
Administrato
r 

Other 
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Roxann Kasparian rkasparian@cobalt
equipment.net 

PO Box 2231 9259980513 Dublin CA Cobalt 
Equipment, Inc 

94568 Operations 
Manager 

Other 

Fumitaka Katafuchi fumitaka.katafuchi
@obayashi-
usa.com 

577 Airport 
Blvd., Suite 600 

6507874410 Burlinga
me 

CA Obayashi 
Corporation 

94010 Vice 
President 

Other 

James Kelley James.kelley@mlu
services.com 

573 Hawthorne 
Avenue 

7066149949 Athens GA MLU 30606 VP of ops   

kerry kennedy kerry.kennedy@cer
esenv.com 

  7576751367 Virginia 
Beach 

VA Ceres 
Environmental 

23456 PM Other 

Robbie Kibbe rrkibbe@gmail.com 192 California St 2525677774 June 
Lake 

CA BTA/Arborworks 93529 Operations/
General 
Foreman 

Other 

Rich Kingsboroug
h 

Jamie@atlas-
tree.com 

1544 Ludwig 
Ave 

7075234399 Santa 
Rosa 

CA Kingsborough 
Atlas Tree 
Surgery Inc 

95407 President Other 

Tracy Latzen tsl@mgeinc.com 1180 Iron Point 
Road Suite, 350 

530-409-
7173 

Folsom CA AB-MFE JV 95630 Operations 
Manager 

Energy, 
Chemical, 
Utilities 

Jay Lazarus jlazarus@teichert.c
om 

400 Sunrise 
Avenue 

9166454833 Rosevill
e 

CA Teichert 
Construction 

95661 Estimator Other 

Gerardo Ledezm lalo@treeservicekin
gs.com 

7210 Jordan 
Ave 

8182565017 Canoga 
park 

CA Tree Service 91303 CEO Other 

Darrell Liebno darrell.liebno@oba
yashi-usa.com 

577 Airport Blvd, 
Suite 600 

6784098498 Burlinga
me 

CA SMCI/Obayashi 94010 VP Other 

Doug Lindgren tubitenterprises@g
mail.com 

PO Box 1019 530-949-
6869 

Burney CA Tubit Enterprises 
Inc 

96013 President Other 

Matthew Long mlong@ecc.net 1240 Bayshore 
Hwy 

774-244-
7102 

Burlinga
me 

CA ECC 94010 Senior 
Project 
Manager 

Other 

Reid Loper rloper@crowdergulf
.com 

5629 Commerce 
Blvd E 

6784773755 Mobile AL CrowderGulf, 
LLC 

36619 Vice 
President 

Other 

Bo LuHellier bo.luhellier@bamfo
rdequipment.com 

4288 State 
Highway 70 

530-990-
4323 

Oroville CA Bamford 
Enterprises, Inc. 

95965 Resource 
Manager 

Other 
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General Manager NorthValleyResour
cesCA@gmail.com 

PO box 1411 530-927-
7095 

Quincy CA North Valley 
Resources 

95971 General 
Manager 

Consulting 

Ed Martinez emartinez@mowbr
ays.com 

1845 Business 
Center Dr, Suite 
215 

9093890077 San 
Bernardi
no 

CA Mowbrays Tree 
Service 

92408 Contracts 
Manager 

Other 

Karina Martinez kmartinez@arborw
orksinc.com 

15466 Los 
Gatos Blvd. Ste. 
109-338 

866-936-
8733 

Los 
Gatos 

CA ArborWorks Inc 95032 Admn Other 

Al McClaran al@southerndr.com 109 White Oak 
Rd. 

864-561-
7797 

Greenvil
le 

SC Southern 
Disaster 
Recovery 

29609 CEO Other 

Jordan McClaran jordan@southerndr
.com 

        Southern 
Disaster 
Recovery 

      

Don McIntyre dmcintyre@arborw
orksinc.com 

40094 Highway 
49 Ste. A 

866-936-
8733 

Oakhurs
t 

CA ArborWorks Inc 93644 President Other 

Spencer Mendez spencerm@rcige.c
om 

P.O. Box 2531 5306820368 Oroville CA RCI General 
Engineering 

95965 Estimator / 
Senior 
Project 
Manager 

Other 

VINCE MIKULANIS vince.mikulanis@d
avey.com 

3665 Ruffin Rd, 
suite 308 

6199212746 San 
Diego 

CA Davey Resource 
Group Inc 

92123   Consulting 

Marc Mizrahi mmizrahi@ecc.net 1240 Bayshore 
Hwy 

9732028776 Burlinga
me 

CA ECC 94010 Program 
Manager 

Consulting 

Jeremy Moore jeremymoore@mar
kitforestry.com 

3370 
Chuckwagon 
Rd. 

719-482-
8274 

Colorad
o 
Springs 

CO MFM 80919 GM Other 

Kenna Morrow info@blossomingtr
eearborist.com 

840 Hengst 
Drive 

7074993211 Chico CA BTA/Arborworks 95928 Owner Other 

Valerie Navarro valerie@livingxele
ments.com 

2240 St. George 
Lane 

5309662845 Chico CA Living X 
Elements 

95926 CEO Other 

Abby Nisbet nationalwildfire@g
mail.com 

44218 Gillan 
Ave 

909-224-
6736 

Lancast
er 

CA National Wildfire 
Protection 
Service LLC 

93535   Other 
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Nick Njirich nick@sierramtn.net 13919 Mono 
Way 

415-830-
7150 

Sonora CA SMCI/Obayashi 
Joint Venture 

95370 Cheif 
Estimator 

Other 

Chris Nobles chrisnobles@cal-
waste.com 

175 Enterprise 
Ct., Suite A 

209-843-
8200 

Galt CA Cal-Waste 95632   Other 

Nicholas Nunley nhnunley@att.net         Forrester & 
Associates, LLC 

    Governme
nt - Federal 

August Ochabauer aochabauer@ecc.n
et 

3028 Hillside Dr 650-465-
0688 

Burlinga
me 

CA ECC 94010 VP 
Operations 

Other 

Jason Papich jpapich@papichcon
struction.com 

(805) 473-2217 8054733016 Arroyo 
Grande 

CA Papich 
Construction 

93420   Other 

Chip Patterson chip@southerndr.c
om 

114 N. Sunrise 
Avenue, Suite 
A-2 

904-334-
9690 

Rosevill
e 

CA Southern 
Disaster 
Recovery 

95661 Vice 
President 
Operations 

Other 

Christopher Peck cpeck@ecc.net       CA ECC   Environment
al Engineer 

  

Trev Pelzer trev.summittforests
@gmail.com 

2305 Ashland 
St. Suite C PMB 
432 

5415358920 Ashland OR Summitt Forests, 
Inc 

97520 Operations 
Manager 

Other 

Scott Peterson scott@kctcllc.com 506!greenleaf 
circle 

9364438626 Conroe TX KCTC 77302 Operation 
Manager 

Other 

Donna Pick donna.pick@ceres
env.com 

3825 85th Ave N 9413586365 Brookly
n Park 

MN Ceres 55443 Proposal 
Coordinator 

Other 

Jeffrey Pike jspike@totaltc.com 1475 Donner 
Ave 

+192558837
23 

San 
Francisc
o 

CA Total Traffic 
Control 

94124 President Other 

Terry Poston postonloggingllc@g
mail.com 

25670 Richards 
Ranch Rd. 

2095322423 Sonora CA Poston Logging 
LLC 

95370 Member/Ma
nager 

Other 

Michael Pryor admin@evergreena
rboristsinc.com 

1296 E. Gibson 
Road, PMB 231 

530-312-
0005 

Woodla
nd 

CA Evergreen 
Arborists, Inc 

95776 President Other 

Charles Rabamad Charlesr@odincons
truction.com 

4740 Rocklin 
Road 

(916)764-
7637 

Rocklin CA Odin 
Construction 
Solutions 

95677 Vice 
President, 
Emergency 
Response 
and 
Recovery 
Services 

Other 
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Vito Ranuio vito@vitotrucking.c
om 

1415 Sandpoint 
dr. 

2093425106 Ceres CA Vito Trucking 95307 managing 
member 

Transportat
ion & 
Distribution 

Mark Rawlings mark.rawlings@do
ugveerkamp.com 

2585 Cold 
Springs Rd 

530-676-
0825 

Placervil
le 

CA Doug Veerkamp 
General 
Engineering 

95667   Other 

Marcos Rodriguez marcos.rodriguez@
mowbrays.com 

1845 Buisness 
Center Dr 

602 615-
3664 

San 
Bernardi
no 

CA Mowbrays Tree 
Service 

92408 Area 
manager 

Other 

Mark Rychlik mtrychlik@gmail.co
m 

214 Mora Court 5303552494 Redding CA Alta California 
Roundwood 

96003 Manager Other 

Joshua Saint josh@arborworks.b
iz 

Mangrove Ave 7064295069 Chico CA Arborworks 
Debris 

95926 Owner Other 

Kevin Sandhu kevin@frontlinegen
eralconstruction.co
m 

34519 Torrey 
Pine Ln 

5104556399 Union 
City 

CA Frontline General 
Engineering 
Construction Inc 

94587 CEO Other 

Ron Sandmann Emshirellc@gmail.c
om 

PO Box 2173 5308095876 Paradis
e 

CA Emshire LLC 95967 Managing 
Member 

Other 

Jeryl Schooler jschooler@arborwo
rksinc.com 

40094 Hwy 49, 
Ste A 

5416615990 Oakhurs
t 

CA ArborWorks Inc 93644 Administrati
ve Assistant 

Other 

Zach Schultz zach.schultz@cere
senv.com 

3825 85th Ave 
North 

435-901-
9252 

Brookly
n Park 

MN Ceres 55443 Operations 
Section 
Chief / 
Project 
Manager 

Other 

Charlene Scott cscott@evergreena
rboristsinc.com 

1296 E. Gibson 
Road, PMB 231 

530-813-
3243 

Woodla
nd 

CA Evergreen 
Arborists, Inc 

95776 Operations 
Manager 

Other 

Danny Sides dsides@ashbritt.co
m 

565 E 
HILLSBORO 
BLVD 

336-215-
5509 

Deerfiel
d Beach 

FL AshBritt, Inc. 33441 Project 
Manager 

Other 

Guy Simmons gsimmons@ecc.net 1240 Old 
Bayshore 
Highway 

9165196139 Burlinga
me 

CA ECC 94010 Sr. Project 
Manager 

Other 

Adolf Singh adolf@sgiwebsite.c
om 

1308 Descanso 
Ave 

7602135462 San 
Marcos 

CA SGI 92069 President Other 
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Charles Slesinger charles@professio
naltreecare.com 

2828 8th St. 4152650028 Berkele
y 

CA The Professional 
Tree Care Co. 

94710 Bid 
Coordinator 

Other 

Marcus Smith msmith@jacoband
hefner.com 

15375 Barranca 
Pkwy., Ste. J-
101 

949-322-
6951 

Irvine CA JHA 
Environmental, 
Inc. 

92618 Regional 
Manager 

Other 

Richard Smith bayareatreespeciali
sts@earthlink.net 

541 W. Capitol 
Expwy PMB 287 

408-466-
3469 

San 
Jose 

CA Bay Area Tree 
Specialists 

95136 Owner Other 

Drew Sprinkle atsprinkle@crowde
rgulf.com 

                

Mark Stafford mstafford@drcusa.
com 

110 Veterans 
Memorial Blvd 

5044157945 Metairie LA DRC Emergency 
Services, LLC 

70005 V.P. 
Response 
and 
Recovery 

Other 

Jim Staley jstaley@arborworks
inc.com 

3200 snows 
road 

(530) 663-
3645 

Camino CA ArborWorks Inc 95709 PM Other 

Heath Stone hstone@pandj.com 1750 Creekside 
Oaks Drive, 
#190 

8656031443 Sacram
ento 

CA Phillips & Jordan, 
Inc. 

95833   Other 

Daniel Strode dstrode@drcusa.co
m 

43490 N. Fork 
Dr., Space 3 

5599366664 Three 
Rivers 

CA DRC Emergency 
Services, LLC 

93271 California - 
Regional 
Manager 

Other 

Marc Stuart mds@altacalround
wood.com 

19105 Latona 
Road 

909-489-
5668 

Anderso
n 

CA Alta California 
Roundwood 

96007 managing 
partner 

Manufactur
ing 

Teresa Tangorra teresa@tfrinc.com 601 Leander 
Drive 

512-260-
3322 

Leander TX TFR Enterprises, 
Inc 

78641 Contract 
Administrato
r 

Other 

Claudia Thorn cthorn@ecc.net 1240 Bayshore 
Highway 

  Burlinga
me 

CA ECC 94010     

Casey Tull ctull@oe3.org 468 century park 
drive 

(530)635-
6126 

Yuba 
city 

CA operating 
engineers local 3 

95991     

Brent Tyrrell tyrrellresources@s
bcglobal.net 

PO Box 8219 530-355-
9200 or 
530-243-
8733 

Truckee CA Tyrrell 
Resources, Inc. 

96162 Field 
Supervisor 

Other 

Taylor Ulm taylor.ulm@wilhelm
llc.com 

120 Stony Point 
Road, 260 

7077551520 Santa 
Rosa 

CA Wilhelm LLC 95401 Manager Other 
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Scott Van Boerum scott@rapidrespon
seforce.com 

15105 Concord 
Circle, Suite 210 

973-580-
6300 

Morgan 
Hill 

CA Rapid Response 
Force LLC 

95037 VP of 
Operations 

Other 

Daisy vazquez daisy@vmtrees.co
m 

937 via lata ste 
500 

5596232260 Colton CA VM Tree Service 92324 president Energy, 
Chemical, 
Utilities 

Dave Vest dvest@3be.com 3387 W Riego 
Rd 

9164177075 Elverta CA 3B Enterprises, 
LLC 

95626 Estimator Other 

Tom Wadden twadden@sukut.co
m 

4010 W 
Chandler Ave 

  Santa 
Ana 

CA Sukut 
Construction, 
LLC 

92704 Project 
Manager/Est
imator 

Other 

Lisa Walsh lgarcia@drcusa.co
m 

110 Veterans 
Memorial Blvd., 
Suite 515 

5044822848 Metairie LA DRC Emergency 
Services, LLC 

70005 Contract 
Manager 

Other 

Gary Warner restorationmanage
ment1@gmail.com 

1577 Beltline Rd 530-941-
4655 

Redding CA Warner 
Enterprises Inc 

96003 Vice 
President 
Operations 
Manager 

Other 

Paul Warner dpwarner@frontier
net.net 

                

Justin White jtwhite@arborworks
inc.com 

378 west 
calaveras blvd 

781-801-
5601 

Milpitas CA ArborWorks Inc 95035 Business 
Developmen
t Manager 

Consulting 

Matt Wigle Mattwigle@markitfo
restry.com 

3370 
Chuckwagon 
Road 

7203121901 Colorad
o 
Springs 

CO Markit Forestry 
Management, 
LLC 

80919 Vice 
President 

Other 

Joe Williamson jwilliamson@bamfo
rdequipment.com 

4288 State 
Highway 70 

530-413-
3807 

Oroville CA J.W. Bamford, 
Inc. 

95965 Timber 
Manager 

Other 

Joe Wood joeslogging@hotm
ail.com 

39744 rd. 274 909 844 
8012 

Bass 
lake 

CA Joe's logging 93604 Owner Other 

Charlotte Woolery wtm.inc@frontier.c
om 

PO Box 1615 2099281850 Tuolum
ne 

CA Woolery Timber 
Management Inc 

95379 President Other 
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Interested Parties Listing for RFP DRR19103 
CalRecycle has not confirmed the certification status of firms who have identified themselves as CA Certified Small Business (SB) or Disabled 
Veterans Business Enterprise (DVBE). 

CONTACT 
NAME 

COMPANY ADDRESS CITY ST ZIP EMAIL SB? SB# DVB? DVB# EMAIL? BUSINESS DESCRIPTION AS 
PRIME 

AS 
SUB 

Adolf Singh SGI 1308 
Descanso 
Ave 

San Marcos CA 92069 adolf@sgiwebsite.com Yes 1045901 No   Yes We remove hazardous tree 
and vegetation including 
power lines. 

Yes Yes 

Al McClaran Southern 
Disaster 
Recovery, LLC 

114 N. 
Sunrise 
Avenue, 
Ste. A-2 

Roseville CA 95661 al@southerndr.com No   No   Yes Southern Disaster 
Recovery (SDR) is a rapid-
response contractor serving 
public and private clients. 
Our service delivery 
includes: utility Right of 
Way services, vegetation 
management. 

Yes No 

Alan Guy Anvil Builders Inc 1475 
Donner Ave 

San 
Francisco 

CA 94124 Estimating@anvilbuilders.com No   No   Yes   Yes No 

Alex Anaya A&E Arborists 
Tree Care, Inc. 

2947 
Colusa 
Hwy, #E1 

Yuba City CA 95993 projects@aearborists.com No   No   Yes Hazard Tree Removal and 
Debris Management 

Yes No 

Anthony 
Ascencio 

Statewide Safety 
Systems 

6479 
Eastside 
Rd. 

Redding CA 96001 aascencio@stssi.com No   No   Yes Complete Traffic Control 
Services 

No Yes 

Armando 
Valdez 

Pacific Coast 
Tree Experts 

22048 
Sherman 
Way, Suite 
106 

Canoga 
park 

CA 91303 a_valdez@sbcglobal.net No   No   Yes Tree removal and hauling 
services 

Yes Yes 

Arnoldo 
Gonzalez 

Sierra Tree 
Company LLC 

422 
Larkfield 
Center #336 

Santa rosa CA 95403 Admin@sierratreecompany.com No   No   Yes Tree removal, hauling 
debris, chipping brush, yard 
clean up. 

Yes Yes 
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Ashley 
Harpine 

TSU/Tree 
Service 
Unlimited, Inc. 

5531 
Silverlode 
Dr 

Placerville CA 95667 aharpine@tsutrees.com No   No   Yes Tree removal services Yes No 

Austin Will Steve Wills 
Trucking and 
Logging LLC 

1637 
Railroad 
Ave  

Orland  CA 95963 Austinwill3@yahoo.com No   No   Yes Trucking and or logging/ 
tree removal 

Yes No 

Ben Brunelle The Professional 
Tree Care Co. 

2828 8th 
Street 

Berkeley CA 94710 ben@professionaltreecare.com Yes 19519 No   Yes Hazardous tree removal, 
transport, and demolition 
services.  

Yes No 

Benjamin 
Haynes 

Ben Haynes 
Construction 

19585 Alta 
Vista Dr. 

Red Bluff CA 96080 look4ben@hotmail.com Yes 2009956 Yes 2009956 Yes I have 2 water trucks.  A 
potable water truck and a 
non potable water truck.  I 
do dust control for the 
roads and move water 
where it is needed. 

No Yes 

Bo LuHellier  Bamford 
Enterprises, Inc. 

4288 State 
Highway 70 

Oroville CA 95965 bo.luhellier@bamfordequipment.com No   No   Yes   Yes No 

Brandon 
Anderson 

Graham County 
Land Company, 
LLC 

750 Tallulah 
Road 

Robbinsville NC 28771 banderson@gclnc.com Yes 54662 No   Yes Tree work and land clearing Yes Yes 

Brent Tyrrell Tyrrell 
Resources, Inc. 

PO Box 
8219 

Truckee CA 96162 tyrrellresources@sbcglobal.net No   No   Yes Tree Removal No Yes 
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Casey Tull Operating 
Engineers Local 
3 

468 Century 
Park Dr. 

Yuba city CA 95991 ctull@oe3.org No   No   Yes   No No 

Chad Dykstra Forest 
Technology 
Solutions 

6201 
Enterprise 
Drive, Ste B 

Diamond 
Springs 

CA 95619 chad@foothilltree.com Yes 2007308 No   Yes Hazard tree removal  No Yes 

Charlene 
Scott 

Evergreen 
Arborists, Inc.- 
Pro Forest 
Division 

1296 E. 
Gibson 
Road, PMB 
231 

Woodland CA 95776 cscott@evergreenarboristsinc.com No   No   Yes Land clearing, wood 
hauling 

Yes Yes 

Charles 
Slesinger 

The Professional 
Tree Care Co. 

2828 8th 
Street 

Berkeley CA 94710 charles@professionaltreecare.com Yes 19519 No   Yes Comprehensive hazardous 
tree removal, demolition, 
transportation services.  

Yes No 

Charlotte 
Woolery 

Woolery Timber 
Management 

PO Box 
1615 

Tuolumne CA 95379 wtm.inc@frontier.com Yes 42256 No   Yes Mechanical Mastication & 
Mechanical Tree Falling 
with Feller Bunchers.  

No Yes 

Chris Nobles Cal-Waste  175 
Enterprise 
Ct., Ste. A 

Galt CA 95632 chrisnobles@cal-waste.com No   No   Yes Debris Removal  No Yes 

Chris Trott CT Bioenergy 
Consulting 

23862 
Marshall 
Way 

Twain Harte CA 95383 ctbioenergy@gmail.com No   No   Yes RPF services No Yes 

Christopher  
Johnston 

BZ Opportunity 
Management 

9311 
Coronado 
Terrace 

Fairfax VA 22031 chris.johnston@bzopportunitycom No   No   Yes Proposal consulting 
services - supporting one of 
the contractors bidding on 
this opportunity.  

No No 
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Cole 
Glenwright 

CA Governor’s 
Office of 
Emergency 
Services 

3560 
Schriever 
Ave 

Mather CA 95655 cole.glenwright@caloes.ca.gov No   No   Yes   No No 

Connor 
Callaghan 

MLU SERVICES 
INC 

573 
Hawthorne 
Ave 

Athens GA 30606 connor.callaghan@mluservices.com No   No   Yes   Yes No 

Daisy 
Vazquez 

Vm Tree Service  937 Via 
Lata Ste. 
500 

Colton  CA 92324 daisy@vmtrees.com No   No   Yes VM Tree Service can 
provide Hazard Tree 
Removal, Brush Removal, 
Line Clearance.  

Yes No 

Dan Strode DRC Pacific 110 
Veterans 
Memorial 
Blvd. 

Metairie LA 70005 dstrode@drcusa.com No   No   Yes   Yes No 

Darlene 
Griffith 

Iron Side 
Contracting 

889 H Ave Powers OR 97466 darlenegriffith@frontier.com Yes   No   Yes Grapple brush piling and 
land clearing, Mastication, 
Machine falling trees, and 
transporting material 

No Yes 

darrell liebno Obayashi 
Corporation 

577 Airport 
Blvd., Ste. 
600 

Burlingame CA 94010 darrell.liebno@obayashi-usa.com No   No   Yes General Contractor Yes No 

Dave Vest 3B Enterprises, 
LLC 

3387 W 
Riego Rd 

Elverta CA 95626 dvest@3be.com Yes 2002891 Yes 2002891 Yes Traffic Control No Yes 

David 
Bluestein 

ECC 1240 
Bayshore 
Hwy. 

Burlingame CA 94582 dbluestein@ecc.net No   No   Yes   Yes No 

Don McIntyre ArborWorks, Inc. 40094 Hwy 
49, Suite A 

Oakhurst CA 93644 dmcintyre@arborworksinc.com Yes 47885 No   Yes   Yes No 
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Douglas  
Benton  

SmcI 13919 Mono 
Way 

Sonora  CA 95370 Doug@sierramtn.net No   No   Yes   Yes No 

Ed Martinez Mowbrays Tree 
Service 

1845 
Business 
Center Dr, 
Ste. 215 

San 
Bernardino 

CA 92408 emartinez@mowbrays.com No   No   Yes High Hazard Tree Removal 
and all Vegetation 
Management Services.   

Yes No 

Ed Rossovich USC Supply 12305 
Locksley 
Lane, 6C 
135 

Auburn CA 95602 ed@uscsupply.net Yes 1568820 Yes 1568820 Yes Trucking Services,  Erosion 
Control Material Supply 

No Yes 

Eddie Juarez Sukut/Odin/P31, 
Joint Venture 

4010 W 
Chandler 
Ave 

Santa Ana CA 92704 edjuarez@sukut.com No   No   Yes Sukut Construction, LLC, 
Odin Construction Solutions 
Inc., and P31 Enterprises 
Inc are a Joint Venture 
pursuing the DRR 19067 
Tree Removal for Camp 
Fire Project.  

Yes No 

Ellie Cardona Anvil Builders 1475 
Donner Ave 

San 
Francisco 

CA 94124 estimating@anvilbuilders.com No   No   Yes   Yes No 

Eric Delong ea-abbruch 125 S Main 
St. #403 

Sebastopol CA 95472 eric@ea-abbruch.com Yes 2013130 No   Yes Tree removal. Staging, 
loading, recycling of 
resultant materials. 
Management of  operations 

Yes Yes 

Eric Franklin United Pacific 
Services, Inc. 

251 Imperial 
Hwy., STE 
450 

Fullerton CA 92835 eric@unitedpac.com Yes 33376 No   Yes Tree Removal Crews with 
Equipment 

No Yes 

Eric 
Helpenstell 

Praetorian Fire 
Rescue 

22409 44th 
Ave Ct. East 

Spanaway WA 98387 Helpenstell@PraetorianFIre.com No   No   Yes Incident management 
Services, Project 
Management, Safety 
professionals, hazardous 
materials response, 
Inspection and technical 
services. 

No Yes 
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Evelyn 
Shaulis 

Shaulis Supplies 2895 
Feather 
River Blvd 

OROVILLe CA 95965 gramasissy1@gmail.com Yes 2018879 No   Yes Faller, falling trees with 
USFS and CalFire, FEMA 
in the Western states. 

Yes Yes 

Fabian 
Gillooly 

Waste 
Management  

100 Vassar 
St. 

Reno NV 89502 fgillool@wm.com No   No   Yes Anderson Landfill is a class 
II landfill and is a great 
option for disposal on this 
project. 

No Yes 

Fumitaka 
Katafuchi 

Obayashi 
Corporation 

577 Airport 
Blvd, Suite 
600 

Burlingame CA 94010 fumitaka.katafuchi@obayashi-usa.com No   No   Yes Interested as a prime Yes No 

Gary Brown Central Sierra 
Enterprise  

54566 Rd. 
200 

North Fork CA 93643 CSPC.GARY@GMAIL.COM Yes 53851 No   Yes Hazard Tree Removal  No Yes 

Gary Warner Warner 
Enterprises, Inc 

1577 
Beltline Rd 

Redding CA 96003 restorationmanagement1@gmail.com 
warnerenterinc@sbcglobal.net 

Yes   No   Yes   Yes Yes 

Gerardo  
Ledezma 

Tree Service 
Kings, Inc.  

7210 Jordan 
Ave. 

Canoga 
Park  

CA 91303 Lalo@treeservicekings.com Yes   No   Yes We do hazardous tree 
removals and clean up. We 
have sub for primes 
working for PG&E, Edison, 
and LADWP. We have the 
equipment and stuff for any 
tree removal.  

Yes Yes 
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Gloria Harp JD Harp Trucking 722 
Decanter 
Cir 

Windsor CA 95492 gloriaharp@jdharptrucking.com Yes 48639 Yes 48639 Yes Water trucks No Yes 

Heath Stone Phillips and 
Jordan, Inc. 

1750 
Creekside 
Oaks Drive, 
#190 

Sacramento CA 95833 hstone@pandj.com No   No   Yes   Yes No 

Jack Fiori CA Waste 
Recovery 
Systems 

175 
Enterprise 
Ct., Ste. A 

Galt CA 95632 jackfiori@cal-waste.com No   No   Yes Trucking Services No Yes 

James 
Bauerlein 

Aforable Brush 
Removal 

407 Mill St. Grass 
Valley 

CA 95945 jimbauerlein@gmail.com Yes CSL 722525 No   Yes Small organized company 
that is willing to expand to 
meet the needs of any 
contract. Fully licensed and 
bonded   Contact number( 
530) 318 5745.  Thank you 
Best regards James 
Bauerlein 

No No 

James Eisert Arcadis 101 
Creekside 
Ridge Ct. 
Ste 200 

Roseville  CA 95678 james.eisert@arcadis.com No   No   Yes   No No 

James Kelley MLU SERVICES 
INC 

573 
Hawthorne 
Ave 

Athens GA 30606 James.Kelley@mluservices.com No   No   Yes   Yes No 

JAMES 
RAWSON 

CORNERSTONE 
DEMOLITION 
CORP 

4295 E. 
JURUPA 
ST., Ste. 
111 

ONTARIO CA 91761 jrawson@cornerstonedemolitioncorp.com Yes 2009295 No   Yes DEMOLITION, SITE 
CLEARING, GRADING, 
EXCAVATION, INTERIOR 
DEMOLITION 

Yes Yes 
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Jason Neville Central Sierra 
Enterprise, INC. 

54566 Rd. 
200 

North Fork CA 93643 cspc.jason@yahoo.com Yes 53851 No   Yes   No Yes 

Jason Papich Papich 
Construction 

(805) 473-
2217 

Arroyo 
Grande, 

CA 93420 jpapich@papichconstruction.com No   No   Yes Heavy civil, oil & gas, 
power, site development, 
transportation 

Yes Yes 

Jeffrey Pike Total Traffic 
Control 

1475 
Donner Ave 

San 
Francisco 

CA 94124 jspike@totaltc.com Yes 2011279 No   Yes Traffic Control is a licensed 
C31 Certified Micro Small 
Business. We were one of 
the prime traffic control 
service suppliers  

No No 

Jeryl 
Schooler 

ArborWorks, Inc. 40094 Hwy 
49, Ste A 

Oakhurst CA 93644 jschooler@arborworksinc.com Yes 47885 No   Yes Hazard tree removal Yes No 

Jim Burk JEB Consulting, 
Inc 

1132 
Commons 
Dr 

Sacramento CA 95825 biomasster@aol.com No   No   Yes   No No 

Joe Davis BATS 809, N. 
Market Blvd 

Sacramento CA 95834 jdavis@gobats.net No   No   Yes Traffic Control No Yes 

Joe 
Williamson 

J.W. Bamford, 
Inc. 

4288 State 
Highway 70 

Oroville CA 95965 jwilliamson@bamfordequipment.com No   No   Yes   Yes No 

Joe Wood Joe's logging 39744 Rd. 
274 

Bass Lake CA 93604 joeslogging@hotmail.com No   No   Yes Tree removal cleanup and 
hauling 

Yes Yes 

John 
Balobeck 

NES, Inc. 1141 Sibley 
St. 

Folsom CA 95630 jbalobeck@nesglobal.net No   No   Yes Safety, Air Monitoring, 
Training 

No Yes 
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John 
Behrend 

John Behrend 
Custom Logging 

15066 
Fountain 
House Rd 

Dobbins CA 95935 johnnleona@aol.com Yes 2007201 No   Yes Local LTO Yes Yes 

Jolie 
Bonvillian 

DRC Pacific 110 
Veterans 
Memorial 
Blvd. 

Metairie LA 70005 jolie@drcusa.com No   No   Yes Debris Removal of Trees Yes No 

Jonathan 
Ferrucci 

Enegix, LLC 1115 W 
Sacramento 
Ave Apt # 
48 

Chico CA 95926 jferrucci@enegix.com No   No   Yes Our seasoned team of 
industry experts has over 
50 years of collective 
experience in electric 
utilities vegetation control, 
emergency response for 
wildifires, Natural Disasters 
and civil construction. 
Headquartered in Butte 
County. 

No Yes 

Joshua ASint GreenTek 
Services 

1692 
MAngrove 
Ave Box 
151 

Chico CA 95926 josh@arborworks.biz No   No   Yes Hazard Tree removal and 
disposal. 

Yes Yes 

Justin Cecil Cecil Logging 
Inc. 

Po Box 
3024 

Lake 
Arrowhead 

CA 92352 Cecillogging@gmail.com No   No   Yes Hazardous Tree removal No Yes 

Karl Dix Ceres Forestry 6968 
Professional 
Parkway E 

Sarasota FL 34240 karl.dix@ceresenv.com No   No   Yes Debris removal, tree 
trimming and timber harvest 

Yes Yes 

Karl Trahan Trahan 
Enterprises, Inc. 

6216 22nd 
Ave 

Lemoore CA 93245 Karl@TrahanEnterprises.com Yes 2012004 Yes 2012004 Yes Water truck services No Yes 
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Karlee Kane  Cal-Waste  175 
Enterprise 
Ct 

Galt  CA 95632 karleekane@cal-waste.com No   No   Yes Debris Removal No Yes 

Kate Howe Odin 
Construction 
Solutions 

4740 
Rocklin Rd. 

Rocklin CA 95677 khowe@odinconstruction.com Yes 2014038 No   Yes   Yes Yes 

Kelly Knight Steelhead 
Constructors JV 

2940 
Innsbruck 
Dr. 

Redding CA 96003 kelly@steelheadconstructors.com Yes 17106 No   Yes We can provide tree 
removal, grinding, slash, 
grading, scarification, 
excavation and stump 
removal . 

Yes No 

Kerrie Noll CrowderGulf, 
LLC.  

5629 
Commerce 
Blvd. E 

Mobile AL 36619 knoll@crowdergulf.com No   No   Yes CrowderGulf specializes in 
debris removal and hauling 
services.  

Yes No 

Kristy 
Fuentes 

DRC Pacific 110 
Veterans 
Memorial 
Blvd. 

Metairie LA 70005 kfuentes@drcusa.com No   No   Yes Disaster/Tree Removal 
Services 

Yes No 

Lisa Walsh DRC Pacific 110 
Veterans 
Memorial 
Blvd. 

Metairie LA 70005 lgarcia@drcusa.com No   No   Yes   Yes No 

Logan 
Bamford 

Apex Enterprises 
Inc 

2162 
Robinson 
St. 

Oroville CA 95965 logan.bamford@apexenterprisesinc.com Yes   No   Yes We are a Licensed Timber 
Operator 

No Yes 
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Madalyn 
Weber 

ECC 1240 
Bayshore 
Hwy. 

Burlingame CA 94010 mweber@ecc.net No   No   Yes ECC is experienced in 
emergency response debris 
removal operations 
following the Camp Fire. 
We offer fast-track removal, 
transportation, and disposal 
of fire-related trees for this 
contract. 

Yes No 

Manoj Prasad  Mario's Tree 
Service Inc  

937 Via 
Lata Ste 
500  

Colton CA 92324 mprasad@mariostreeservice.net No   No   Yes Hazards tree removal Yes No 

Marc Stuart Alta California 
Roundwood 

19195 
Latona Rd. 

anderson CA 96007 mds@altacalroundwood.com No   No   Yes Wood processing facility No Yes 

Mark Stafford DRC Pacific 110 
Veterans 
Memorial 
Blvd. 

Metairie LA 70005 mstafford@drcusa.com No   No   Yes Hazardous Tree Removal 
Services 

Yes No 

Mark Wells KDF Forestry Inc 4801 
Feather 
River Blvd 

Oroville  CA 95940 Mark@kdfglobal.co No   No   Yes We are looking to bid prime 
on this contract.  

Yes No 

Mary Ehlers Forgen, LLC 6558 
Lonetree 
Blvd 

Rocklin CA 95765 mehlers@forgen.com No   No   Yes   No Yes 

Matt Howland Ryatt 
Construction LLC 

9414 Stone 
Ave N 

Seattle WA 98103 matt@ryatt.net No   No   Yes Ryatt Construction is a site 
services company from the 
Pacific Northwest. Ryatts 
diverse management team 
is capable of all aspects of 
construction job from 
planning, permitting 
field/finance mgmt. 

Yes No 
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Matthew 
Kearns 

Grassroots 
Erosion Control 
Inc. 

1446 
Golden 
Spur Dr. 

Placerville CA 95667 info@grassrootserosion.com Yes 2005638 Yes 2005638 Yes Grassroots Erosion Control 
Inc. is a veteran owned 
(DVBE), family operated 
company with more than 
30+ years combined 
experience in the erosion 
control industry throughout 
CA and Nevada. Erosion 
Control Services 

No Yes 

Melissa 
Huizinga 

Greentek 
Services 

1692 
Mangrove 
Ave, Box 
151 

Chico CA 95926 melissa@greentekservices.com No   No   Yes Tree removal, wood 
management, 
administration 

Yes Yes 

Melissa Mora Rama Tree 
Service 

708 S 
Church Rd. 

Bensenville IL 60106 ramatreeservice@hotmail.com Yes WBE2000631 No   Yes Owns loader trucks to haul No Yes 

Michael 
Ondrejka 

FEMABio 850 W 
Foothill 
Blvd., #19 

Azusa CA 91702 femabiohazard@gmail.com No   No   Yes We can provide any 
services related to 
biohazard removal and 
remediation 

Yes No 

Michael 
Watts 

Helping Hands 
Hauling  

Tacomic Dr. Sacramento  CA 95842 Michaelwatts19@gmail.com Yes   No   Yes Junk hauling, tree removal, 
demolition, property clean 
out,etc. 

No Yes 

Mike Johnson  High place 
construction  

11097 Columbia  CA 95310 Mjhighplace@gmail.com No   No   Yes Timber harvester trucking 
company 

No Yes 

Morgan 
Stinson 

ConstrucConnect 3825 
Edwards 
Rd. Ste. 800 

Cincinnati OH 45209 content@constructconnect.com No   No   Yes   No No 
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Nick Higgins Atlas Tree 1544 
Ludwig Ave 

Santa Rosa CA 95407 nickhiggins@atlas-tree.com Yes 27600 No   Yes   Yes No 

Olivia Marino DRC Pacific 110 
Veterans 
Memorial 
Blvd. 

Metairie LA 70005 omarino@drcusa.com No   No   Yes   Yes No 

Patrick 
Boileau 

Operating 
Engineers Local 
3 

1620 S 
Loop Rd 

Alameda CA 94502 pboileau@oe3.org No   No   Yes   No No 

Patrick 
Gayner 

G4 
Environmental 

100 
Railroad 
Ave 

Loyalton CA 96118 pat@g4enviro.com No   No   Yes Prime project management, 
admin, inventory sampling 

No Yes 

paul warner warner 
enterprises 

9776 cow 
creek dr. 

palo cedro CA 96073 dpwarner@frontiernet.net No   No   Yes   No No 

Phil Rogacki Trip Hazard LLC 1544 
Ludwig Ave.  

Santa Rosa CA 95407 phil@triphazard.com Yes 2017270 No   Yes Gutter, Drain, Root 
Services 

Yes Yes 

Rachael 
Campbell  

HIS Design 325 Pomo 
Ct. 

Willits CA 95490 hisdesign@live.com Yes 2005077 No   Yes Joint venture with Diamond 
Tree to provide Hazardous 
tree removal, thinning 
brushing, inventory, GIS 
mapping, documentation 
and report generation for 
project tracking and 
recording 

No Yes 

Rebecca 
winfrey 

Jeff winfrey PO box 844 berry creek CA 95916 Jeff.campbc@gmail.com No   No   Yes logging, felling, chipping, 
skidding loading, hauling, 
land clearing  

Yes No 

Richard 
Kingsborough 

Kingsborough 
Atlas Tree 
Surgery Inc 

1544 
Ludwig Ave 

Santa Rosa CA 95407 jamie@atlas-tree.com Yes 27600 No   Yes Hazardous Tree Removal 
and processing 

Yes No 
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Richard 
Smith 

Bay Area Tree 
Specialists 

541 W 
Capitol 
Expwy PMB 
287 

San Jose CA 95136 bayareatreespecialists@earthlink.net Yes 42702 No   Yes Tree removal, tree pruning, 
arborist services 

No Yes 

Rick 
Czuleger 

Teichert 
Construction 

400 Sunrise 
Blvd. suite 
300 

Rosevville CA 95661 estimatingr@teichert.com 
estimating@teichert.com 

No   No   Yes   Yes No 

Robert 
Fuzzell 

RPF Emergency 
Services LLC 

520 Mineral 
Trace 

Hoover AL 35244 drichards@rpfes.net No   No   Yes   Yes Yes 

Robert 
McCollum  

Hat in the Ring 
Falling Service  

337 Bruce 
St  

Chico CA 95928 robinmccollum@sbcglobal.net No   No   Yes ICS Class C Unlimited 
Faller 

No Yes 

Robert Props Props Tree & 
Landscape, Inc. 

4068 
Cincinnati 
Ave 

Rocklin CA 95765 robert@propstreecare.com No   No   Yes We are a complete tree 
care business established 
in 1974.  We have 
completed large scale tree 
removal work for the 
USACE on various levee 
improvement projects.  

No Yes 

Robyn Martin Ramada Plaza 
Hotel Chico 

685 
Manzanita 
Ct. 

Chico CA 95973 robyn.martin@hilton.com No   No   Yes We are a full service Hotel. 
With easy access to Hwy 
99/Golden State Highway.  
We have 173 guest rooms 
featuring 9 Ste.s with Room 
Service available. Please 
contact Robyn for the 
details. 530.345.2491 or 
Robyn.Martin@Hilton.com 

No No 



California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery 
Attachment 3 of Addendum 1 - DRR19067 

84 
 

Ron 
Sandmann 

Emshire LLC PO Box 
2173 

Paradise CA 95967 Emshirellc@gmail.com No   No   Yes We are an "A" licensed LTO Yes Yes 

Ryan 
Bellanca 

Bella Wildfire & 
Forestry Inc. 

340 Larsen 
Lane 

Applegate CA 95703 admin@bellaforestry.com Yes 2015106 No   Yes Bella is  a D-49 Tree 
Service Contractor 

Yes Yes 

Ryan Olson Kite Solutions 
LLC 

PO Box 
7861 

Chico CA 95927 Ryan@kitesolutionsllc.com Yes   No   Yes We are a local logging 
contractor that specializes 
in Vegetation Management 
and Fuels Reduction, 
Trucking and Heavy 
Equipment operations 

No Yes 

Sara Davis Sierra Mountain 
Construction, Inc. 

13919 Mono 
Way 

Sonora CA 95370 sdavis@sierramtn.net No   No   Yes Class A  & Tree Removal 
Experience  

Yes No 

Scott 
Huffmaster 

Mountain F. 
Enterprises, Inc. 

1180 Iron 
Point Road 
Suite, 350 

Folsom CA 95630 scott.huffmaster@mtfent.com No   No   Yes Prime contractor for all 
aspects of the project. 

Yes No 

Scott Van 
Boerum 

Rapid Response 
Force LLC 

15105 
Concord 
Circle, Suite 
210 

Morgan Hill CA 95037 scott@rapidresponseforce.com Yes 2018726 No   Yes Tree removal and hauling. No Yes 

Seth Parker Pacific Land 
Water and Home 

26352 
Carmel 
Rancho 
Lane Ste. 
203  

Carmel  CA 93923 sethparker91@yahoo.com Yes   No   Yes Masticating, stump grind, 
chipping 

Yes Yes 

Sharlynn 
Childers 

San Joaquin 
Forest Products, 
LLC 

15753 
Morgan 
canyon Rd, 
Box # 215 

Prather CA 93651 sjfp.llc@gmail.com No   No   Yes Logging of salvage timber. No Yes 
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Spencer 
Mendez 

RCI General 
Engineering 

P.O. Box 
2531 

Oroville CA 95965 spencerm@rcige.com Yes 2011648 No   Yes Tree Removal, road 
building, trucking 

No Yes 

Steve 
Gauthier 

Rancho Tree 
Service 

32260 
Avenue E 

Yucaipa CA 92399 steve@ranchotreeservice.com No   No   Yes Hazard Tree Removal, 
fuels reduction, utility tree 
work 

Yes No 

Steve 
Kozlowski 

Greenleaf Power 
- Honey Lake 
Power 

732025 
Wendel Rd. 

Wendel CA 96136 skozlowski@greenleaf-power.com No   No   Yes Receive/dispose of 
biomass generated from 
this project 

No No 

Suzanne Grix Forgen 6558 
Lonetree 
Blvd. 

Rocklin CA 95765 sgrix@forgen.com No   No   Yes Tree removal operations Yes No 

Tatiana 
Medina 

Enegix, LLC 1115 W 
Sacramento 
Ave Ste 111 

Chico CA 95926 jferrucci@enegix.com No   No   Yes   No Yes 

Terry Poston Poston Logging 
LLC 

25670 
Richards 
Ranch Rd. 

Sonora CA 95370 postonloggingllc@gmail.com Yes 2018325 No   Yes Licensed Contractor and 
LTO 30+ years.  

No Yes 

Tiffany  Jean TFR Enterprises, 
Inc 

601 
Leander Dr. 

Leander TX 78641 tiffany@tfrinc.com No   No   Yes Emergency Tree Removal 
Services, Debris Removal, 
and Reduction of 
Vegetative Debris. 

Yes No 

Tim Barna KDF Forestry 7 Littlewood 
Dr. 

Piedmont CA 94611 tim@kdfglobal.co No   No   Yes Tree Removal Yes No 

Tim Bradfotf P31 Enterprises 
Inc 

4288 Hwy 
70 

Oroville CA 95965 tim.bradford@p31.enterprises Yes   No   Yes Tree and debris removal 
services. 

Yes No 
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Valerie 
Navarro 

Living X 
Elements 

2240 St. 
George 
Lane 

Oroville CA 95926 valerie@livingxelements.com No   No   Yes We are listed as an end use 
site. 

No No 

Vanessa 
Troncoso 

Pari & Gershon 
Inc. (PGI) 

2101 Geer 
Rd. 

turlock CA 95382 vanessat@pgiinc.net Yes 1786301 No   Yes NOA monitoring, lead or 
mold testing, stormwater 
management. 

No Yes 

Vito Ranuio Vito Trucking 1415 
Sandpoint 
Dr. 

Ceres CA 95307 vito@vitotrucking.com No   No   Yes Transportation services 
including wood chips, logs 
and mixed debris  

No No 

William 
Brouhard 

Chico Land 
Investment  

2550 
Lakewest 
Dr, Ste. 50 

Chico CA 95928 Bill@GBrealestate.net No   No   Yes Vacant land processing 
facility  

No No 

Zach Schultz Ceres CA 3825 85th 
Ave North 

Brooklyn 
Park 

MN 55443 zach.schultz@ceresenv.com No   No   Yes Ceres is a Prime Contractor 
handling large disasters 
nation wide. 

Yes No 

Zane 
Peterson 

Peterson Timber 
INC. 

5197 
deschutes 
rd suite B 

Anderson  CA 96007 petersonzane100@gmail.com No   No   Yes We can provide Skilled 
fallers and trucks to move 
wood 

No Yes 

 


